
July 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President, Ken Howell, Council Vice President, John Halverson,  
Members: 

Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Cindy Flower, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 
 

 

AGENDA 

1. Mayor Hartz calls the meeting to order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Alderman Halverson 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Awards, Presentations, and Proclamations 

 
a. 2017 City of Lake Geneva Financial Report Presentation by Dave Maccoux 

 
5. Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 
6. Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public 

hearing items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. 
 

7. Acknowledgement of Correspondence 
 

8. Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of June 11, 2018, as prepared and distributed 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request 
requires no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

– Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation on July 17, 2018 

 
a. 2018-2019 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
b. Event Permit Application filed by the Lake Geneva Public Library for the event of a Book Sale to be held 

August 10-12, 2018 to be held at the library and outside the Wrigley Drive entrance (Applicant is requesting 
waiver of all fees). 

 
c. 2018-2019 renewal of Taxi Cab Company License for Lakefront Shuttle: W3746 Lakeview Drive., Lake 

Geneva, WI 53147 
 

10. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 
 
11. Finance, License, and Regulation Committee Recommendations of July 17, 2018- Ald. Howell 

 
a. Discussion/Action regarding Resolution 18-R55

 

 acknowledging receipt of the 2017 City of Lake Geneva Annual 
Financial Report and Management Letter. 

 
City of Lake Geneva 
626 Geneva St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
(262) 248-3673 
www.cityoflakegeneva.com 

 



July 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 2 of 3 

b. Discussion/Action regarding adjustment to Capital Borrowing as it pertains to the replacement/installation of 
exhaust for $22,000, and lights for $10,000 at the Public Works Department - 1065 Carey St. with corresponding 
2018 Capital Budget adjustment. 
 

c. Discussion/Action regarding replacement of lawn tractor, John Deere 850, with a Kubota Tractor not to exceed 
$25,057.47 for Veterans Park Maintenance with corresponding 2018 Equipment Replacement Budget adjustment. 

 
d. Discussion/Action on additional costs to raise elevation of pedestrian bridge in Disc Golf Course, not to exceed 

$4,750 with corresponding 2018 Capital Budget adjustment. 
 

e. Discussion/Action regarding the creation of a GoFundMe donation account from the Avian Committee linked to a 
separate bank account established through the City of Lake Geneva Finance Department. 
 

f. Discussion/Action regarding a parking pilot app with the company ParkPNP. 
 

g. Discussion/Action regarding the Special Assessment Report for the Cemetery Road Water/Sewer/Curb and Gutter 
Extension Project and project implementation plan (Approved by the Finance, License, and Regulation Committee on June 19, 
2018). 
 

h. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R56

 

 amending the Plan Sponsor Advisory Administrative Agreement and 
Service Agreement Fee Schedule for the City of Lake Geneva Security Benefit 457(b). 

12. Planning Commission Recommendations of July 16, 2018- Ald. Skates 
 
a. Discussion/Action of a Land Division filed by Jeremy Kinsey, 908 Clover St., Lake Geneva, WI 53147 to create a 

Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 401 Host Drive, and to generate two individual lots for 
the property in the Planned Business (PB) zoning district - Tax Key No. ZA163000003. 
 

b. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R50

 

 of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Mohammad Kaid, 313 W. 
Summerhill Pl ace, Oak Creek, WI 53154 to utilize the property as Indoor Commercial Entertainment for a Fro 
Zone business at 270 Broad St, located in the Central Business (CB) zoning district Tax Key No. ZOP00244. 

c. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R51

 

 of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Robert D. Larson Trust, 2403 
Comstock Ct., Naperville, IL 60564 for the demolition and new construction of a single family residence and 
requests to utilize the Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning at 905 Bayview Drive which is located within the Estate 
Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZGB00005. 

d. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R52

 

 of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Robert D. Larson Trust, 2403 
Comstock Court, Naperville, IL 60564 for the installation and addition of a 100’ pier located at 905 Bayview 
Drive. Propertylocated within the Estate Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZGB00005. 

e. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R53

 

 of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Lawrence & Pamela Frankel, 1240 
Dolphin Bay Apt. 402, Sarasota, FL. 34242, for the demolition and new construction of a single family residence, 
and requests to utilize the Single Family–4 (SR-4) zoning at 75 Hillside Drive located within the Estate 
Residential – 1 (ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZYUP00094E. 

f. Discussion/Action of Resolution 18-R54

 

 of a Conditional Use Permit filed by Lake Geneva Public Library, 918 
W. Main Stree3t to install a new Community Information Sign for the property located in the Estate Residential -1 
(ER-1) zoning district, Tax Key No. ZOP00348. 

g. Discussion/Action for the amendments to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



July 23, 2018City Council Agenda   Page 3 of 3 

13. Discussion/Action to reconsider putting the Resolution 18-R42 

 

 concerning Closing Dark Store Loopholes on the 
November ballot as the county is also considering placing a resolution regarding Dark Stores on the same ballot.  

14. Personnel Committee Recommendations as of July 16, 2018 – Ald. Proksa 
 

a. Discussion/Action recommending the council to accept the resignation and notice of the City Administrator.  
 

b. Discussion/Action recommending the City Council direct city staff to begin the search for an interim and permanent City 
Administrator via low cost online platforms. 

 
c. Discussion/Action recommending the City Council direct city staff to begin the search for a project manager to address the 

question of how to provide the best employee health insurance in the most cost effective manner for the City and its 
employees. 

 
15. Presentation of Accounts – Ald. Howell (Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation Committee on July 

17, 2018) 
a. Purchase Orders (none) 
b. Prepaid Bills in the amount of $10,468.98 
c. Regular Bills in the amount of $137,426.99 

 
16. Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing 

of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session with regard to:   

A.  Selection and terms of retainer for Real Estate Broker to sell City property located at N. Edward Blvd 
and Sheridan Springs Rd. 

B. Contracts with MSI for renovations to the Riviera 
 

17. Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items 
discussed in closed session 

 
18. Adjournment 
 
 

Requests from persons with disabilities, who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing, should be made to the City 
Clerk’s office in advance so the appropriate accommodations can be made. 

7/19/2018 5:00 PM   cc: Aldermen, Mayor, City Admin., Attorney, Dept. Heads, Media 
 



July 9, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 1 of 4 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
MONDAY, JULY 9, 2018 – 6:00 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 
 
Members:

 

 Mayor Tom Hartz, Council President Ken Howell, Council Vice President John Halverson, Alderpersons: Selena Proksa, 
Doug Skates, Tim Dunn, Cindy Flower, Shari Straube, and Rich Hedlund 

 
The July 9, 2018 meeting of the Common Council was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mayor Hartz. 

 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Alderperson Straube 

 
Roll Call 
Present: Mayor Hartz, Alderpersons: Proksa, Skates, Dunn, Flower, Straube, Halverson, Hedlund, and Howell 
Absent: None 
Guests:

 
 City Attorney Draper, City Administrator Oborn, and City Clerk Kropf 

None 
Awards, Presentations, and Proclamations 

 

None 
Re-consider business from previous meeting 

 

Eric Anderson, 333 Promontory Dr; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to 
occur. 

Comments from the public as allowed by Wis. Stats. §19.84(2), limited to items on this agenda, except for public hearing 
items. Comments will be limited to 5 minutes. 

 
Rick Steinberg, 1032 Williams St; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the 
Committee of the Whole.  
 
Ed Gant, 1127 Wisconsin St; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. 
 
Janet Uhing; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. She is worried 
about the cost associated with purchasing, maintaining, and storing a lift. 
 
Cindy Acre, 1280 Lakewood Dr; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to 
occur. She is worried about the cost associated with purchasing, maintaining, and storing a lift. 
 
Jeff Miller, 1740 Miller Rd; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. He 
was discouraged that he wasn’t given more notice of a potential decision prior to this meeting. 
 
Lisa Gant, 1127 Wisconsin St; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. 
She is worried about the cost associated with purchasing, maintaining, and storing a lift. 
 
Bill Hunteress, 1015 Pleasant St; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to 
occur. He added that if the City feels that the repair costs for the piers are too high, that the bills should be scrutinized, not 
passing the cost to the renters.  
 
Pete Peterson, 606 Evergreen; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the Committee of 
the Whole. He also spoke in opposition of the purchasing of a shade structure and bleachers for the skate park.  
 
Daryl Vanhorn, 1025 Timothy; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. 
He asked that before the City makes a decision, that the renters be notified and heard. 
 

 



July 9, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 2 of 4 

Sherri Ames, 603 Center St; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the Committee of 
the Whole.  
 
Jim Fess, 1150 Park Dr #1106; Spoke in opposition of the boat lift requirement and would like more discussion to occur. 
He is worried about the cost associated with purchasing, maintaining, and storing a lift. 
 
Terry O’Neil, 954 George St; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the Committee of 
the Whole. 
 
Mary Jo Fesenmaier, 1085 S Lakeshore Dr; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the 
Committee of the Whole. She also spoke in opposition to the boat lift requirement and that the MSI Contracts for the 
Riviera project are being discussed in closed session. 
 
Dick Malmin; N1991 S Lakeshore Dr; Spoke in opposition of the language change to the ordinance pertaining to the 
Committee of the Whole.   
 

Clerk Kropf noted that there was one item of correspondence received in regards to the boat lift requirement and it was 
distributed to the Common Council. 

Acknowledgement of Correspondence 

 

Motion by Hedlund to approve the minutes of the June 25, 2018 Common Council meeting, second by Flower. Flower 
requested that her name be removed from leading the Pledge of Allegiance. Motion carried 8-0. 

Approve Regular City Council Meeting minutes of June 25, 2018, as prepared and distributed 

 
CONSENT AGENDA
Any item listed on the consent agenda may be removed at the request of any member of the Council.  The request requires 
no second, is not discussed, and is not voted upon. 

– Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation on July 3, 2018 

 
-2018-2019 Original & Renewal Operator License applications filed by various applicants as listed in packet 

 
-Beach Reservation Permit filed by Mt Zion Church for the event of a beach baptism to be held at Riviera Beach on 
September 16, 2018 between 11:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. (Recommended by Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts on June 20, 2018) 
 
Motion by Howell to approve the consent agenda as presented, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0.  
 

None 
Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 

 

Mayor Hartz read Ordinance 18-04 for a second reading.  

Second Reading of Ordinance 18-04- Amending Subsection (b) Meeting of Section 2-230, Committee of the Whole of 
Division 1, Generally of Article V Boards and Commission of Chapter 2, Administration of the Municipal Code of the 
City of Lake Geneva; Relating to the Frequency of meetings for the Committee of the Whole 

Motion by Hedlund to approve Ordinance 18-04, second by Flower. Halverson noted that he is against the change, and 
wanted to clarify that the Council never intended to remove the provision of Committee of the Whole or the public 
comment period. Proksa and Skates both added that they are against the changes and would like the meeting to continue. 
Flower added that previous Committee of the Whole meetings were stale but since the new appointments, she feels that 
the meetings have more purpose and would like to see them continue. Dunn also commented that he would like see the 
meetings continue and maybe make it less formal so the public can address the Council earlier. Motion failed 0-8 with all 
alderpersons voting no. 
 
 
 
 
 



July 9, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 3 of 4 

Mayor Hartz read the ordinance for a first reading. Motion by Hedlund to suspend the Council rules and move the 
ordinance to a second reading, second by Howell. Motion carried 8-0 

First Reading of Ordinance 18-07- Amending Chapter 74, Traffic and Vehicles, Article VI, Traffic Code, Section 74-204, 
Stop Intersections, Subsection (5), Four-Way Stops, adding a Four Way Stop Sign at the Intersection of Geneva Street and 
Broad Street 

Mayor Hartz then read the ordinance for a second reading. 
 
Motion by Proksa to approve, second by Straube. Proksa stated that she is in favor as she has heard numerous positive 
comments in regards to the placement and continued placement of the stop sign. Motion carried 8-0. 

 

Motion by Skates to approve, second by Flower. Attorney Draper noted that his memo stated that the shade structure 
couldn’t be purchased with the Park Impact Fees.  

Discussion/Action regarding purchase of Shade Structure in the amount of $8,000.00 to be paid from Park Impact Fees for 
placement at City Skate Park/Dunn Field (Carried over from May 29, 2018 Council meeting) 

Motion to amend by Skates to approve the purchase of Shade Structure in the amount of $8,000 for placement at City 
Skate Park/Dunn Field with park fees instead of park impact fees, second by Flower. Motion carried 7-1, with Halverson 
voting no. 
 

Motion by Flower to approve, second by Skates. Flower noted that she would like to see these in the parks as to encourage 
adults and parents to be present. She added that the bleachers would offer an additional thirty-two seats for parents to 
enjoy. Motion carried 7-1, with Howell voting no. 

Discussion/Action regarding purchase of bleachers in the amount of $2,400.00 to be paid from Park Impact Fees for 
placement at City Skate Park/Dunn Field (Carried over from May 29, 2018 Council meeting) 

Finance, License, and Regulation Committee Recommendations of July 3, 2018- Ald. Howell 
 

Motion by Howell to approve the lighting donation with construction to start after Labor Day (can only take place up to 
noon on Friday’s with no Saturday construction), second by Straube.  No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

Discussion/Action regarding Riviera Grounds/Driehaus Plaza Lighting donation by the Beautification Committee, Inc. 
(Motion at Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts: Ald. Halverson motioned to approve the lighting donation with construction to start after Labor Day (can 
only take place up to noon on Friday’s - no Saturday construction), second by Hedlund. Motion carried 5-0.) 

 

Motion by Skates to refer back to Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts Committee for further discussion, second by Halverson. 
Skates added that he was given information that identified that there was a higher cost associated with pier maintenance 
which actually existed. He would like to see this item be referred back to the Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts Committee to 
discuss other ideas and options. Motion carried 8-0. 

Discussion/Action on mandating boat lifts for City Slip Rentals (Motion at Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts: Motion by Ald. Skates to 
implement mandatory boat lifts for 2019, second by Hedlund. Motion 3-2 with Halverson and Straube voting no.) 

 

Motion by Howell to approve, second by Hedlund. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 

Discussion/Action of Riviera Concourse Leases renewal for 2019 (Motion at Piers, Harbors, and Lakefronts: Motion by Ald. Hedlund 
to not increase Riviera Concorse leases for 2019; for one year. Motion carried 5-0.) 

 

Motion by Howell to approve, second by Proksa. City Administrator noted that the underwriting would allow the City to 
be considered for the inclusion of the State Health plan. Hedlund noted that once the underwriting has occurred, it’s good 
for six months and would encourage the Council to vote to approve now so that joining the State Plan might be an option. 
This would also give employees time for research and education. Motion carried 8-0. 

Discussion/Action regarding Wisconsin Public Employers’ Health Insurance Underwriting by Segal Consulting for 
$3,000 

 
Presentation of Accounts – Ald. Howell (Recommended by Finance, License and Regulation Committee on July 3, 
2018) 

 
Purchase Orders
None 

  

 
 
Prepaid Bills in the amount of $23,570.00 



July 9, 2018City Council Minutes   Page 4 of 4 

Motion by Howell to approve, second by Skates. No discussion. Motion carried 8-0. 
 

Motion by Howell to approve, second by Skates. Flower noted that she is seeing a lot of large payments for construction 
pay requests coming through that are not being considered by the Public Works Committee and should be. She would like 
to see this come through in the future. Motion carried 8-0. 

Regular Bills in the amount of $430,973.59 

 
Motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of 
public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever 
competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session with regards to:  
1) Riviera Architectural and Construction Contracts with MSI General  
2) Police Officers Union Labor Agreement 
and pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering 
oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is 
likely to become involved with regard to:  
3) White River Holdings LLC’s Claims 
 
Motion by Hedlund to convene the Common Council in closed session, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion 
carried 8-0. 
 
The Council convened into closed session at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Alderperson Straube left the meeting at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Motion to return to open session pursuant to Wisconsin Statues 19.85 (2) and take action on any items discussed in 
closed session 
 
Motion by Howell to reconvene the Council into open session, second by Halverson. No discussion. Motion carried on a 
roll call vote 7-0. 
The Council reconvened into open session at 8:16 p.m. 
 
Motion by Hedlund to direct the City Attorney to continue negotiations with MSI General and if they agree with the terms 
as discussed in closed session, the Mayor is authorized to sign the contract, second by Howell. Motion carried on a roll 
call vote 7-0. 
 
Motion by Howell to take no action on Police Officers Union Labor Agreement, second by Hedlund. No discussion 
Motion carried 7-0. 
 
Motion by Howell to take no action regarding the White River Holding LLC Claim, motion failed for a lack of second.   
 
Adjournment 
Motion by Dunn to adjourn the July 9, 2018 meeting of the Common Council, second by Flower. Motion carried 7-0. The 
Common Council adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 
 

THESE MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
 

 



Original Operators: 
Michelle Deann Banc 
Karly Lynn Badame Krkljus 
Kyle Hill 
Brian Klear 
Destiny Ortiz 
Kayleigh Kitzman 
 
 
 
 
Regular Operators: 
Scot  Effenheim 
Stephanie Copsey 
Riley Oman 
Alison Zimmerman 
Jessica Heather 
Christine White 
Daniel James 
Emily Bailey 
Mark Cloutier 
Peggy Zabler 
 
 























 
Resolution No 18-R55 

 
 WHEREAS, Schenck, S.C. has prepared the City of Lake Geneva Annual Financial 
Report and Management Letter for 2017, now therefore, 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva, that the proper 
city officials be hereby authorized and directed to acknowledge receipt of the 2017 City of Lake 
Geneva Annual Financial Report and Management Letter. 

 
Adopted this 23th

      APPROVED: 
 day of July, 2018. 

 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Tom Hartz, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 









John Deere 850 utility.  #52  ($16k budgeted) 

1984 model 850 2 wheel drive utility tractor. 2410 hrs. Used primarily at Vets Park for general duties.  

This unit currently is used for all duties at Vets Park including ball field maintenance, fertilizer/insecticide 
treatment and any other duty needed.  

Replacement costs are outdated as mentioned at PWC and replacement costs are in the $22-27k range. 
Adding a loader to this unit is prudent as duties change for staff, including ball field mix installation and 
the ongoing maintenance of the entire park. Topsoil, dirt/fill as well as moving bleachers, benches and 
loading 1 ton dumps have become common as the park ages. 

 

Replacement has been postponed many times as the unit itself performed well. However, maintenance 
issues, parts availability and service have presented themselves in the past several years. 

 





















 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:     Chairman Ken Howell & FLR Committee 
 
From:   Sylvia Mullally, Parking Manager 
 
Re:   Recommendation for ParkPNP Parking App Trial  
 
Date:                 July 13, 2018 
 
On July 10, 2018 the Public Works Committee made a motion that FLR consider a pilot trial 
parking app program with the company “ParkPNP."  
 
Purpose of a parking app program:  

• Ability to offer an additional payment option to encourage parking compliance 
• Ability to offer another payment option other than the meter  
• Ability to offer usage-friendly merchant promotional programs (i.e. validation and 

coupons) allowing businesses to assume all or part of their customer parking fees  
• Ability to offer customers, residents and visitors notification alerts regarding City 

wide event, information and/or offers 
 

Potential Benefits to the City -“ParkPNP” 
• The customer would have the opportunity to pay for parking without initiating a meter 

transaction  
• The customer and/or merchant assumes the user fee per transaction 

 
 

Summary of Pilot: 
• Offer the City a (1) one year trial (pilot) with the option to renew subject to a mutual 

agreement 
• City can opt out at anytime 
• Staff will report findings including usage, revenue, public and merchant feedback to 

Public Works, FLR and/or Council for their consideration 
 

 
 
 



 

2 
 

Functionality & Specifications-Testing Pilot Program 
 
City System requirements “Park PNP” has integrated with the City’s existing partners –

UPSafety (Enforcement) 
Merchant Validation Validation, Promo & Discount Programs for local merchants to 

provide their customers with free and/or discounted parking via 
a QR code; at merchant expense 

User Convenience Fee 
Recommendation 

Option #$.38 user fee; with “ParkPNP ”assuming the role as 
Merchant of Record (MOR)  

Security/Proposal  PCI-DSS v3 Level 1 Service Provider, certified & complaint 
Attestation of Compliance  PCI Data Security Standard Report  
Customer account set up 
requirements 

Free account setup via City website;  
Free downloadable app via app store; 
Usable devices: cell phone, smart phone (iPhone, android) 
 

Customer account 
requirements 

VISA, MasterCard & Discover, PayPal and Visa Checkout, (Future 
payment technologies) ApplePay, & Google Wallet; license plate 
number & zone number 
 

Initial Setup & Licensing 
Fees 

Waived 

Deployment fees (e.g. 
installation, testing, 
training, and marketing)  

Waived 

Annual Maintenance, 
Hosting & 24/7 call center 
& support fees  
  
 

Waived 

Integration Costs with 
UPSafety Enforcement 
 

Waived 

Marketing & Advertising 
Costs 

TBD 

Timeline for real-time 
integration 

21 days of signed contract (3 weeks) 

 
 

 

 

 



Lake Geneva Utility Commission 
 

Dennis Lyon, President 
Josh Gajewski, Utility Director 

 
Jeff Ecklund, Water Superintendent 

Scott Tesmer, Wastewater Superintendent 
 

361 W. Main Street     P.O. Box 187      Lake Geneva, WI 53147    Phone (262) 248-2311 
www.lgutilitycommission.com    

      
 

TO:   City of Lake Geneva                    
 
FROM:  Josh Gajewski, Utility Director 
 
SUBJECT: Cemetery Road Water and Sewer Extension Project 
 
DATE:  July 17, 2018 
 

The Utility Commission received a request from the owner of 4 – 1/3A parcels on the north 
side of Cemetery Rd to extend municipal water and wastewater utilities to the parcels. The 
Commission has completed an affirmative feasibility study to extend utility services to the area. 
Using preliminary construction estimates, the project area was extended to include other 
unserved parcels for a more economical long-term installation cost. A recommendation was 
made by the Commission to the PWC and Council, that an extension of water and sewer service 
be completed to the area using special assessments to recover construction costs.  
 
Council passed a Preliminary Resolution to exercise Special Assessment powers and directed 
staff to prepare a report as outlined by Wis. Statute. The findings of the report were reviewed 
by the Commission and PWC, resulting in a dual recommendation to proceed with the project 
using special assessments to recover the construction costs and to bid the project prior to 
holding a public hearing. 
 
Prior to moving forward with the project, the Commission and PWC request further input from 
Council on the potential project costs and proposed special assessments, along with the project 
implementation scope to complete the extensions.  
 
Accompanying this memo are the following supporting documents for Council review: 
 
Map of proposed project area. 
Map of proposed benefiting parcel’s services. 
Estimated cost per parcel based on project services installed and existing services provided. 

 

 

http://www.lgutilitycommission.com/


CURRENT MUNICIPALITY 
 

 
 

City of Lake Geneva:     Town of Geneva:  



SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ELIGIBILITY 

 
  Town of Geneva – Deferred   Sanitary  Water    Curb and Gutter



 
 
 

1342 Elkhorn Road, Lake Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87
1350 Elkhorn Road, Lake Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87
N3113 CTH H Town of Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87
N3129 CTH H Town of Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87
N3129 CTH H, Town of Geneva
N3135 CTH H, Town of Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87

1351 Elkhorn Road

1300 Cemetery Road

Lot 2 CSM 930 - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
N3117 CTH H, Town of Geneva $30,297.87 $30,297.87
N3103 - Connected to 1350 Elkhorn Road $30,297.87 $30,297.87
No Address - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
Lot 1 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
Lot 2 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
Lot 3 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
Lot 4 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road $30,297.87 $17,606.40 $47,904.27
1363 Elkhorn Road (Curb & Gutter Only) $0.00
Oak Hill Cemetery $0.00

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
CEMETERY ROAD SEWER AND 

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Sanitary Water Special Assessment Address Total Assmt.Curb & Gutter

Calculated with 
exceptional 

frontage of 1300 
Cemetery Road



 
 

Example Schedule Example Schedule

4% 4%
Year Amount Balance Principal Interest Annual Payment Year Amount Balance Principal Interest Annual Payment

1 $30,297.87 $30,297.87 $1,514.89 $1,211.91 $2,726.81 1 $47,904.27 $47,904.27 $2,395.21 $1,916.17 $4,311.38
2 -$1,514.89 $28,782.97 $1,514.89 $1,151.32 $2,666.21 2 -$2,395.21 $45,509.05 $1,514.89 $1,820.36 $3,335.26
3 -$1,514.89 $27,268.08 $1,514.89 $1,090.72 $2,605.62 3 -$1,514.89 $43,994.16 $1,514.89 $1,759.77 $3,274.66
4 -$1,514.89 $25,753.19 $1,514.89 $1,030.13 $2,545.02 4 -$1,514.89 $42,479.27 $1,514.89 $1,699.17 $3,214.06
5 -$1,514.89 $24,238.29 $1,514.89 $969.53 $2,484.43 5 -$1,514.89 $40,964.37 $1,514.89 $1,638.57 $3,153.47

6 -$1,514.89 $22,723.40 $1,514.89 $908.94 $2,423.83 6 -$1,514.89 $39,449.48 $1,514.89 $1,577.98 $3,092.87
7 -$1,514.89 $21,208.51 $1,514.89 $848.34 $2,363.23 7 -$1,514.89 $37,934.59 $1,514.89 $1,517.38 $3,032.28

8 -$1,514.89 $19,693.61 $1,514.89 $787.74 $2,302.64 8 -$1,514.89 $36,419.69 $1,514.89 $1,456.79 $2,971.68

9 -$1,514.89 $18,178.72 $1,514.89 $727.15 $2,242.04 9 -$1,514.89 $34,904.80 $1,514.89 $1,396.19 $2,911.09

10 -$1,514.89 $16,663.83 $1,514.89 $666.55 $2,181.45 10 -$1,514.89 $33,389.91 $1,514.89 $1,335.60 $2,850.49
11 -$1,514.89 $15,148.93 $1,514.89 $605.96 $2,120.85 11 -$1,514.89 $31,875.01 $1,514.89 $1,275.00 $2,789.89
12 -$1,514.89 $13,634.04 $1,514.89 $545.36 $2,060.25 12 -$1,514.89 $30,360.12 $1,514.89 $1,214.40 $2,729.30
13 -$1,514.89 $12,119.15 $1,514.89 $484.77 $1,999.66 13 -$1,514.89 $28,845.23 $1,514.89 $1,153.81 $2,668.70
14 -$1,514.89 $10,604.25 $1,514.89 $424.17 $1,939.06 14 -$1,514.89 $27,330.33 $1,514.89 $1,093.21 $2,608.11
15 -$1,514.89 $9,089.36 $1,514.89 $363.57 $1,878.47 15 -$1,514.89 $25,815.44 $1,514.89 $1,032.62 $2,547.51
16 -$1,514.89 $7,574.47 $1,514.89 $302.98 $1,817.87 16 -$1,514.89 $24,300.55 $1,514.89 $972.02 $2,486.92
17 -$1,514.89 $6,059.57 $1,514.89 $242.38 $1,757.28 17 -$1,514.89 $22,785.65 $1,514.89 $911.43 $2,426.32
18 -$1,514.89 $4,544.68 $1,514.89 $181.79 $1,696.68 18 -$1,514.89 $21,270.76 $1,514.89 $850.83 $2,365.72
19 -$1,514.89 $3,029.79 $1,514.89 $121.19 $1,636.08 19 -$1,514.89 $19,755.87 $1,514.89 $790.23 $2,305.13
20 -$1,514.89 $1,514.89 $1,514.89 $60.60 $1,575.49 20 -$1,514.89 $18,240.97 $1,514.89 $729.64 $2,244.53

$43,022.97 $57,319.37

20 Year Payment 20 Year Payment 

Assessment Assessment
Sanitary Only Sanitary & Water

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Example Schedule Example Schedule

4% 4%
Year Amount Balance Principal Interest Annual Payment Year Amount Balance Principal Interest Annual Payment

1 $30,297.87 $30,297.87 $3,029.79 $1,211.91 $4,241.70 1 $47,904.27 $47,904.27 $4,790.43 $1,916.17 $6,706.60
2 -$3,029.79 $27,268.08 $3,029.79 $1,090.72 $4,120.51 2 -$4,790.43 $43,113.84 $4,790.43 $1,724.55 $6,514.98
3 -$3,029.79 $24,238.29 $3,029.79 $969.53 $3,999.32 3 -$4,790.43 $38,323.41 $4,790.43 $1,532.94 $6,323.37
4 -$3,029.79 $21,208.50 $3,029.79 $848.34 $3,878.13 4 -$4,790.43 $33,532.98 $4,790.43 $1,341.32 $6,131.75
5 -$3,029.79 $18,178.71 $3,029.79 $727.15 $3,756.94 5 -$4,790.43 $28,742.55 $4,790.43 $1,149.70 $5,940.13

6 -$3,029.79 $15,148.92 $3,029.79 $605.96 $3,635.75 6 -$4,790.43 $23,952.12 $4,790.43 $958.08 $5,748.51
7 -$3,029.79 $12,119.13 $3,029.79 $484.77 $3,514.56 7 -$4,790.43 $19,161.69 $4,790.43 $766.47 $5,556.90

8 -$3,029.79 $9,089.34 $3,029.79 $363.57 $3,393.36 8 -$4,790.43 $14,371.26 $4,790.43 $574.85 $5,365.28

9 -$3,029.79 $6,059.55 $3,029.79 $242.38 $3,272.17 9 -$4,790.43 $9,580.83 $4,790.43 $383.23 $5,173.66

10 -$3,029.79 $3,029.76 $3,029.79 $121.19 $3,150.98 10 -$4,790.43 $4,790.40 $4,790.43 $191.62 $4,982.05
$36,963.42 $58,443.23

10 Year Payment 10 Year Payment
Sanitary & Water

Assessment Assessment
Sanitary Only

 



D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Task Order\Task 15 Cemetery Road Engineering and CM\Task 15_Cemetery Road Engineering 
and CM.doc  Page 1 of 3 

TASK ORDER NUMBER #00 
CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
This task order is made as of May 00, 2018, under the terms and conditions 

established in the MASTER AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES, (the 
Agreement), between the City of Lake Geneva Utility District (Owner) and Kapur & 
Associates, Inc. (Engineer).  This Task Order is made for the following purpose: 
 

Provide civil engineering and construction management services for the design and 
construction of a new public sanitary sewer, water main, and curb and gutter collection 
system that will be installed within Cemetery and Elkhorn Road (CTH H) right of ways 
in the City of Lake Geneva and Town of Geneva. The sanitary sewer, water main and 
curb and gutter will be installed on Cemetery road from Elkhorn Road to a point 
approximately 500’ east.  In addition, sanitary sewer only will be constructed from 1342 
Elkhorn Road north to the existing sanitary system at the Edgewood drive.  This task 
order provides the detailed engineering, bidding and construction oversight portions of 
the project.  A feasibility analysis and special assessment report were previously 
completed. 

 
The work schedule for this project has yet to be determined and is subject to the special 
assessment timeline. 

 
Section A. – Scope of Services 

 
Engineer shall perform the following Services: 
 
Engineer shall perform the following Services: 
 

1. Utilizing topographic survey and mapping previously collected, field reviews 
and plan preparation for the utility design of: 

a.      1200 Feet of Sanitary Sewer on Cemetery Road and Elkhorn Roads. 
b. 500 Feet of Water Main on Cemetery Road from Elkhorn Road to the 

east. 
c.       Provide 760 feet of curb and gutter on the North Side of Cemetery 

Road From Elkhorn Road to the East. 
Plans will be prepared that include utility improvements for sanitary sewer 
and laterals, watermain and service laterals and curb and gutter.  It is 
anticipated that a traffic control plan will be prepared for this work and as 
required by federal law and accessible ramps will be reviewed and replaced as 
needed to meet minimum standards for access. Plans will include location and 
details of pavement removals, new asphaltic paving, any sidewalk repairs, 
curb and gutter replacement and restoration. 
 

2. Provide utility coordination of all private utilities for all work including utility 
location for survey of utility improvements requiring grading or repairs. 

 



D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Task Order\Task 15 Cemetery Road Engineering and CM\Task 15_Cemetery Road Engineering 
and CM.doc  Page 2 of 3 

3. Provide construction cost estimate for all utility and curb and gutter 
improvements.   

 
4. Prepare and provide Project Manual including but not limited to 

Advertisement for Bids, Instruction to Bidders, Bid Form, Bidder’s 
Qualification Statement, Agreement, and General Conditions of Contract, 
Supplementary Conditions, and Special Provisions. 

 
5. Attend Bid Opening. 

 
6. Review Bids, make recommendation for award, and coordinate notice of 

award, agreement, and notice to proceed documentation.   
 

7. Attend meetings as required and provide updates to the Utility Department.  
 

Construction Management Activities 
 
8. Provide administrative services to manage client coordination/invoicing, 

project schedules, contract change order documentation, establish project logs, 
formatting monthly contract quantity estimating and contractor invoicing and 
contract closeout documentation for base bid projects. 

 
9. Provide construction survey staking for necessary items within the 

construction contract.  This survey provides for a “one time” staking for a 
particular item.  If the contractor damages any stakes, they shall be 
responsible for the cost to replace those damaged stakes. 
 

10. Coordinate and complete necessary material testing services for work 
completed. 

 
11. Process payment requests from the contractor for their work and prepare 

recommendation for payment for City approval.  Complete final close out 
documentation and acceptance of improvements memorandum. (This task is 
completed on a monthly basis and is completed for all work approved for 
the prior month.) 

 
12. The Engineer will be responsible for notifying, scheduling, conducting, 

documenting, and distributing minutes of the preconstruction conference. 
 

13. Prepare and provide project update memorandum and provide copies of the 
daily journal entries to City staff weekly. 

 
 
Section B. – Schedule 
 



D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Task Order\Task 15 Cemetery Road Engineering and CM\Task 15_Cemetery Road Engineering 
and CM.doc  Page 3 of 3 

Engineer shall perform the Scope of Services and deliver the related Documents 
according to the following schedule.  This schedule is subject to change based on actual 
circumstances and unknown variables and is to be used a approximation only.: 
 
1. Provide “Preliminary Plans” to the Lake Geneva Utility District for review and 

comment on or before September 00, 2018. 
2. Provide Final Plans and Specification to the Lake Geneva Utility District for bid 

on or before October 00, 2018. (TBD) 
 
 
Section C. – Compensation 
 
In return for the performance of the foregoing obligations, Owner shall pay to Engineer 
an amount not-to-exceed Eighty Thousand and Four Hundred Dollars ($80,400.00).  
payable according to the following terms: 
 
A not-to-exceed amount based on the rates as listed in Attachment A of the Agreement, 
plus direct expenses.  Cost plus services are limited to an agreed maximum figure unless 
amended.   
 
Engineer may request a change to the billing hours if scope changes, beyond the control 
of the Engineer, resulting in an extension of the schedule or necessitates a change in 
personnel. 
 
Compensation for Additional Services (if any) shall be paid by Owner to Engineer 
according to the hourly billing rates shown in Attachment A of the Agreement. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Engineer have executed the Task Order. 
 
Owner: Lake Geneva Utility District    Engineer: Kapur & Associates, Inc. 
 
By:        By: Gregory L Governatori 
 
 
Signature:       Signature:      
 
Title:        Title: Associate 
 
Date:        Date:                  



Kapur Associates, Inc.
Summary of Staff Hours and  Labor Costs

for the
City of Lake Geneva 

CLASSIFICATION

Average Hourly Wage

Cemetery Road Watermain Design

Field Review 6 $492.00 6 $492.00
Survey/Mapping 4 $316.00 4 $432.00 8 $748.00

Meetings as Required 8 $1,120.00 8 $888.00 12 $984.00 28 $2,992.00
Plan Preparation/Review 4 $560.00 4 $444.00 64 $5,248.00 72 $6,252.00

Watermain Design 4 $444.00 32 $2,624.00 36 $3,068.00
WDNR Permitting 2 $222.00 6 $492.00 8 $714.00

As-Builts 8 $632.00 6 $648.00 14 $1,280.00

Subtotal $15,546.00

Cemetery/Elkhorn Road Sanitary Sewer
Field Review 6 $492.00 6 $492.00

Survey/Mapping 4 $316.00 4 $432.00 8 $748.00
Meetings as Required 8 $1,120.00 8 $888.00 12 $984.00 28 $2,992.00

Plan Preparation/Review 4 $560.00 4 $444.00 80 $6,560.00 88 $7,564.00
Sanitary Sewer Design 4 $444.00 90 $7,380.00 94 $7,824.00

WDNR Permitting 2 $222.00 6 $492.00 8 $714.00
As-Builts 8 $632.00 6 $648.00 14 $1,280.00

Subtotal $21,614.00

Project Manual/Administration

Administration 8 $1,120.00 4 $328.00 12 $1,448.00
Advertisement/Project Manual/Specifications 4 $560.00 8 $888.00 32 $2,624.00 44 $4,072.00

Meetings as Required 4 $560.00 4 $328.00 8 $888.00
Post Bid opening activities 8 $656.00 8 $656.00

Subtotal $7,064.00
Construction Management Activities

Construction Management Admin 8 $1,120.00 12 $1,332.00 10 $820.00 30 $3,272.00
Shop Drawing Approvals 2 $222.00 4 $328.00 6 $550.00

Sanitary Sewer 160 $13,120.00 6 $492.00 24 $2,592.00 190 $16,204.00
Watermain 80 $6,560.00 6 $492.00 8 $864.00 94 $7,916.00

Curb and Gutter 20 $1,640.00 4 $328.00 8 $864.00 32 $2,832.00
Roadway 16 $1,312.00 4 $328.00 20 $1,640.00
As-Builts 16 $1,312.00 8 $864.00 24 $2,176.00

GIS Coordination 20 $1,580.00 20 $1,580.00
Subtotal $36,170.00

TOTALS 48 6,720.00$   58 6,438.00$       660 54,120.00$   44 3,476.00$   8 656.00$         20 1,640.00$      68 $7,344.00 906 $80,394

$80,394

Estimated Expenses

Totals

 Construction Project 
Engineer 

$96.00

Hours DollarsDollars

Summary of Expenses Units Cost Total

TASK DESCRIPTION HoursHours Dollars

 Project Manager 

$140.00

Hours Dollars

 Project Engineer II 

$111.00

Hours Dollars

TASK ORDER 15
Cemetery Road Engineering and Construction Management Project - Attachment A

$82.00

Hours
ACT. 
Code

$79.00

 Survey Crew 

Hours DollarsHours Dollars

$94.00

Hours

 Surveyor  SeniorTechnician  
 Construction Staff 

Engineer 
Staff Engineer II Total  Labor

Dollars

$108.00$82.00

Expenses:

Project Total:

Dollars

Kapur Associates Hours Page 1 5/10/2018



 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
              

  
 
        
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REPORT 

CEMETERY ROAD/CTH H

SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 
       WATER MAIN EXTENSION

              & CURB AND GUTTER 
 

WALWORTH COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

PREPARED BY:  

KAPUR & ASSOCIATES, INC 
1124 S. PINE STREET  

BURLINGTON WI, 53105  

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA 

5/10/2018 



Special Assessment Report  City of Lake Geneva

 
April 2018 Page 2 of 5 

 

 

 

 

Special Assessment Report 

Cemetery Road/CTH H  

Sanitary Sewer Extension, 
Water Main Extension 

& Curb & Gutter 

City of Lake Geneva 

Walworth County, Wisconsin 

Project Number: 170449 

 
 
 

May 10, 2018 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Gregory L 
Governatori, P.E. 
Project Manager 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Special Assessment Report  City of Lake Geneva

 
April 2018 Page 3 of 5 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes, Section 78-160 of the Lake 
Geneva Utility Code, and pursuant to the Preliminary Resolution adopted by the City of Lake 
Geneva Common Council on the date of March 12, 2018, the undersigned hereby files with the City 
Clerk of the City of Lake Geneva, located in Walworth County, Wisconsin, this report regarding the 
Cemetery Road/CTH Sanitary Sewer, Watermain and Curb & Gutter expansion Project and its 
related Special Assessments. 

 
Each of the real properties described herein against which the Special Assessments will be levied is 
benefited by this project, and this construction project is being done as an exercise of the police power 
of the City of Lake Geneva, Wisconsin, as allowed in Section 66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes. 

 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT 
 

A new public sanitary sewer, water main, and curb and gutter collection system will be installed within 
Cemetery and Elkhorn Road (CTH H) right of way in the City of Lake Geneva and Town of Geneva. 
The sanitary sewer, water main and curb and gutter will be installed on Cemetery road from Elkhorn 
Road to a point approximately 500’ east.  In addition, sanitary sewer only will be constructed from 
1342 Elkhorn Road north to the existing sanitary system at the Edgewood drive. This project is being 
completed by the City of Lake Geneva. 
 
Fifteen properties are considered “benefitted properties” under the applicable Wisconsin Statues that 
will benefit from the installation of the sewer and are accordingly being specially assessed for a part 
of the project cost.  Five benefited properties of the sanitary sewer being installed in this project are 
currently within the Town of Geneva and will be required to connect to the sewer at such a time the 
properties annex to the City. There are six benefited properties as part of the water main extension as 
wells as the curb and gutter improvements. 
 
The sanitary sewer, water main, and curb and gutter anticipated assessment costs have been 
calculated by the city consulting engineer, based on preliminary design and estimated prices received 
for this project. All utilities will be 8” which is standard size to provide service to the benefitted 
properties in this project.  No upsizing is considered as part of this project. 
 
The City of Lake Geneva will be paying for the costs associated with providing curb and gutter to the 
Oak Hill Cemetery property. 
 
Water services connections on Elkhorn Road are not part of this project and future watermain 
service connections will involve at the owners cost, the cost of connecting to the existing watermain 
and installing water service to the property owner’s residence/building. 

 
The special assessments for each benefitted property are described in the Assessment Schedules A 
through C attached to this Report 

ATTACHMENTS 
 



Special Assessment Report  City of Lake Geneva

 
April 2018 Page 4 of 5 

 

 

This report includes the following attachments:  

Exhibit A- Plans and Specifications 

Exhibit B- Terms of Special Assessment 

Exhibit C- Assessment Rate Calculations/Schedules  

 Schedule A- Sanitary Sewer Assessment Schedule 

 Schedule B- Water Main Assessment Schedule  

 Schedule C- Curb & Gutter Assessment Schedule 

Exhibit D- Mandatory Connection/notes 

Exhibit E- Summary of Properties 
  



Special Assessment Report  City of Lake Geneva

 
April 2018 Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Exhibit A‐ Plans and Specifications 

 
There is on file in the office of the Utility Director, a set of plans and specifications for the construction 
project, which are available for review during business hours. Said plans and specifications are hereby 
incorporated into this report by reference. The limits of the Sanitary Sewer Extension, Water Main 
Extension, and Curb & Gutter for the municipal project is shown on Exhibit A. 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

 

Exhibit B‐ Terms of the Special Assessment 

 
1. The total estimated Project cost is $704,086.60.  The City of Lake Geneva (the “City”) 

will pay for the cost of installing curb and gutter along the north side of Cemetery road 
along the Oak Hill Cemetery.  The City’s estimated cost for this work is $23,219.05.  
The remaining estimated balance of the Project cost is $680,867.55, which will be 
assessed on the benefitted properties. 
 

2. There are fifteen (15) benefitted properties (the “Benefitted Properties”) in this Project.  
The thirteen Benefitted Properties are described in attached Exhibit E. 
 

3. The Sanitary Sewer assessment calculations are based on a per lot bases with Each 
Benefitted Property (15) is being specially assessed, under the police power provisions 
of Section 66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes, in the amount of $22,636,61, based on 
an equal, per lot, basis. 
 

4. The Watermain assessment calculations are based on per lot bases with each Benefitted 
property six (6) being specially assessed, under the police power provisions of Section 
66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes, in the amount of $27,290,34, based on an equal, per 
lot, basis. NOTE LAKE GENEVA CODE SAYS PER FOOT 
 

5. The Curb and Gutter assessment calculations are based on linear footage of frontage 
for each Benefitted property. Each Benefitted property (7) is being specially assessed, 
under the police power provisions of Section 66.0703 of the Wisconsin Statutes, based 
on an estimated linear foot cost of $87.83 per linear foot. 

 
6. A Benefitted Property owner may pay the full assessment to the City, without any 

interest thereon, on or before the date of November 1, 2018.  If such special assessment 
is not paid in full to the City on or before November 1, 2018, then the said special 
assessment shall be placed on the tax roll of the Benefitted Property over twenty (20) 
years, in the manner described in below Paragraph 7. 
 

7. The special assessment amount shall be levied on each Benefitted Property, 
commencing with the 2019 tax roll for the Benefitted Property.  Commencing on the 
date of January 1, 2019, interest shall accrue on the unpaid amount of the special 
assessment at the rate of Four Percent (4.0%) per annum until paid in full.  The total 
assessment amount, plus accrued interest, shall be paid in Twenty (20) equal annual 
installment payments on the tax roll of the Benefitted Property, with such first annual 
installment payment to be placed on the 2018 tax roll, and with the final, twentieth 
annual installment payment placed on the 2037 tax roll. 
 

8. The special assessment, plus accrued interest, may be paid in full at any time by the 
Benefitted Property owner. 
 

9. Pursuant to Section 66.073(11), Wis. Stats., if the final Project cost is less than the 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

estimated Project cost used for the purposes of this Report, then the special assessments 
levied based on the Report’s estimated Project cost shall be proportionately reduced, in 
the manner provided for in that statute.   
 

DEFERRAL OF ASSESSMENTS 
 

(a) All sewer assessments on land currently within the Town of Geneva shall be 
deferred until such time that a Triggering Event occurs. 

 
(b) During the time that an assessment is deferred, no interest shall accrue. 

 

 
1. Upon the occurrence of one of the “Trigger Events” described below Paragraph, the 

property owner shall pay the entire special assessment levied on the benefitted property, 
in one lump sum, within Sixty (60) Days after the date of the Trigger Event. Provided that 
the special assessment is timely paid, no interest shall accrue on the special assessment. 
In the event of a failure to timely pay the special assessment, however, interest shall 
accrue, and shall be deemed to have accrued, on the special assessment at the rate of Four 
Percent (4%) per annum from the date on which the said watermain is operational and 
available for a benefitted property to obtain municipal water service, until paid in full 

 

a. A land division of the property, whether through a plat, certified survey map, or any 
other procedure that creates a new and/or an additional parcel(s) of land from the 
benefitted property. 
 

b. Any development activity, of any kind, on the property for, or related to, residential, 
commercial, industrial, institutional, or any other non-agricultural purpose. 
 

c. Annexation into the City 
 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Exhibit C 

Schedule A ‐ Sanitary Sewer Assessment Rate Calculations 

 

Sanitary Sewer  
ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY. UNIT $ $ TOTAL 

204.0110 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 80  $         22.50   $         1,800.00  

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch CY 30  $        15.00   $         960.00  

460.11.01 

HMA Pavement MT 28-58 S, Item also 
includes asphaltic material PG 64-22 
(455.0220) and asphaltic material for tack 
coat (455.0605). 

TON 

20  $       115.00   $         6,500.00  

628.1504 Silt Fence LF 510  $          2.00   $         1,020.00  

628.2004 
Erosion Mat Urban Class I, Type B 
(NON-NETTED) SY 1050  $          5.00   $         5,250.00  

628.7015 Inlet Protection Type C EACH 6  $         50.00   $           300.00  

690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 360  $          3.00   $         1,080.00  

SPV.0060.01 Manhole Frame & Cover  EACH 8  $       500.00   $         4,000.00  

SPV.0090.01 Sanitary Sewer 8-Inch PVC  LF 120  $        130.00   $        15,600.00  

SPV.0090.01 Sanitary Sewer 8-Inch PVC  LF 1060  $        100.00   $        106,000.00  

SPV.0090.02 Sanitary Sewer 6-Inch PVC (Lateral) LF 285  $         95.00   $         27,075.00  

SPV.105.01 Traffic Control LS 1 $   25,000.00 $          25,000.00 

SPV.0180.01 

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes 
Topsoil (625.0100), Mulching 
(627.0200), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), 
Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 1050  $          8.00   $         8,400.00  

SPV.200.01 Sanitary Manhole 48-Inch VF 120  $        350.00   $         42,000.00  

 20% Construction Contingency      $        48,997.00 

 
20% Contingency Engineering/Legal 
Fees                    $        45,567.00 

SANITARY PROJECT COST $                           339,549.00  

 

Assessment Calculations 
 
Sanitary Sewer: 

 
Sanitary Project Cost: $293,982.00 
Engineering/Legal Fees: $45,567 
Total Project Cost: $339,549.00 
  
  
Total Number of Benefitted Properties: 15 
Sanitary Assessment Rate/Parcel: $22,636.61 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Exhibit C 

Schedule B – Water Main Assessment Rate Calculations 

Watermain  
ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY. UNIT $ $ TOTAL 

204.0110 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 20 $45.00  $      900.00  

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch CY 20 $32.00  $      640.00  

460.11.01 

HMA Pavement MT 28-58 S, Item 
also includes asphaltic material PG 64-
22 (455.0220) and asphaltic material 
for tack coat (455.0605). 

TON 

4 $325.00  $      1,300.00  

628.2004 Erosion Mat Urban Class I, Type B SY 410 $5.00  $      2,050.00  

690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 80 $3.00  $      240.00  

SPV.0060.01 Water Valve & Valve Box 8-Inch EACH 2 $2,800.00  $      5,600.00  

SPV.0060.02 Hydrant Assemblies EACH 1 $5,000.00  $     5,000.00  

SPV.0060.03 Tracer Wire Access Box EACH 1 $325.00  $         325.00  

SPV.0060.04 
1" Curb stop/box with extension rod 
and tracer box EACH 6 $650.00  $      3,900.00  

SPV.0060.05 1" Corp Stop EACH 6 $300.00  $      1,800.00  

SPV.0090.01 C-900 Water Main 8-Inch  LF 480 $130.00  $     62,400.00  

SPV.0090.02 1" Water Service, HDPE LF 310 $75.00  $     23,250.00  

SPV.0090.03 
Hydrant Lead 6-Inch (Granular 
Backfill) LF 5 $115.00  $      575.00  

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1 $5,000.00  $      5,000.00  

SPV.0180.01 

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes 
Topsoil (625.0100), Mulching 
(627.0200), Fertilizer Type A 
(629.0205), Seeding Mix No. 40 
(630.0140) SY 430 $12.00  $      5,160.00  

 20% Construction Contingency      $        23,628.00 

 18.6% Contingency Engineering      $        21,974.00 

WATERMAIN PROJECT COST $                           163,742.00  

Assessment Calculations 
 
Watermain: 

 
Watermain Project Cost: $141,768.00 
Engineering/Construction Management: $21,974.00 
Total Project Cost: $163,742.00 
  
  
Total Number of Benefitted Properties: 6 
Watermain Assessment Rate/Parcel: $27,290.34 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Exhibit C 

Schedule C – Curb & Gutter Assessment Rate Calculations 

 

Curb & Gutter  

ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION 
UNI

T QTY. UNIT $ $ TOTAL 

204.0120 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 170 $22.50  $      3,825.00  

205.0100 Excavation Common CY 200 $45.00  $      9,000.00  

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch CY 196 $24.00  $      4,704.00  

460.6223 
HMA Pavement 3 LT 28-58 S, Item also 
includes tack coat (455.0605). TON 4 $ 325.00  $      1,300.00  

460.6224 
HMA Pavement 4 LT 28-58 S, Item also 
includes tack coat (455.0605). TON 6 $325.00  $      1,950.00  

601.0411 Concrete Curb & Gutter 30-Inch Type D LF 757 $30.00  $     22,710.00  

628.2004 Erosion Mat Urban Class I, Type B  SY 170 $5.00  $      850.00  

690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 757 $3.00  $      2,271.00  

SPV.0180.01 

Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes 
Topsoil (625.0100), Mulching 
(627.0200), Fertilizer Type A 
(629.0205), Seeding Mix No. 40 
(630.0140). SY 170 $8.00  $      1360.00  

 20% Construction Contingency     $9,594.00 

 
20% Contingency Engineering/Legal 
Fees                   $8,922.00 

CURB & GUTTER PROJECT COST $                           66,486.00  

 

Assessment Calculations 
 
Curb & Gutter: 

 
Curb & Gutter Project Cost: $57,564.00 
Engineering/Legal Fees: $9,594.00 
Total Project Cost: $66,486.00 
  
  
Total Number of Benefitted Properties: 7 
Total Linear feet of Curb and Gutter 757 
Liner Foot Rate: $87.83/FT 

 

   



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

 

Exhibit D‐ Mandatory Connection/Notes 
 

2. Section 78-252 ”Sewer Connection Required of the Lake Geneva Municipal Code: “All 
owners of property to which sanitary sewers are available, as determined by the Director of 
Utilities, shall connect with the sanitary sewer system and properly abandon their private 
disposal system. At such time as the Director of Utilities determines that sewer service is 
available, he shall serve a notice upon the owner of the property to make the connection to 
the sanitary sewer within 30 days from the date of the notice. If the owner finds it difficult to 
comply with the terms of the notice, he shall file with the Director of Utilities a statement 
from a licensed plumber or other person authorized to do such work that such property 
owner has contracted to have such work done within a stated period of time, not to exceed six 
months from the expiration of the thirty-day period set forth in the notice.” of the City of 
Lake Geneva Municipal Code, pertaining to (i) mandatory connection requirements once 
sanitary sewer service is available to the Benefitted Properties, and (ii) the Sanitary Sewer 
Connection charge payable by the Benefitted Property owners for municipal sanitary sewer 
service. 
 

3. Under Section 78-252, connection to the sanitary sewer system and payment of the sewer 
connection charge is required within 30 days after written notice is given by the City to the 
Benefitted Property owner that municipal sanitary sewer service is available to serve the 
Benefitted Property.  For the purposes of this unique project; however, the benefitted 
properties will be required to connect to the municipal sewer within 2 years after written 
notice is given by the City to the Property. 
 

4. When making the connection of the Benefitted Property to the sanitary sewer system, the 
Benefitted Property owner shall be responsible for the cost of (i) installing a sewer lateral 
from the residence/building to the property line (the Project itself installing a sewer lateral 
from the sanitary sewer main to the property line), (ii) making the interior plumbing 
connections in the residence/building, and (iii) abandoning the presently-existing private 
sanitary system.  
 

5. The property with addresses N3103, N3113, N3117, N3129, and N3135 CTH H (Elkhorn 
Road) are currently located within the Town of Geneva and not serviced by City utilities.  
For this special assessment report the property listed above shall connect to municipal sewer 
and water within 180 days after annexation. (Water Lateral Costs are the responsibility of the 
property owner at time of required connection) 
 

6. Attached to this Report, as a part of this Exhibit D, are copies of Section 78-160 ”Water 
Main Extensions” and Division 8. Service Connections: of the City of Lake Geneva 
Municipal Code, pertaining to (i) mandatory connection requirements once water sewer 
service is available to the Benefitted Properties, and (ii) the Water Main Connection charge 
payable by the Benefitted Property owners for municipal water service. 

 
 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

 
7. Under current ordinances, existing buildings are not required to connect to the installed 

watermain, and such an installation is discretionary with the property owner.  Even if no 
connection is made to the installed watermain, however, the property owner will still have to 
pay the special assessment being levied on the property for the said watermain, whether in 
one lump sum or in annual installment payments as described above. Water service hook- up 
for new construction, however, is mandatory for new building facilities adjacent to the right-
of-way in which a watermain is located. 
 

 
 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Exhibit E‐ Summary of Benefited Properties 

 
ZYUP 00044C 1342 Elkhorn Road, Lake Geneva Haydam Trust E14051 HWY 33, Hillsboro 

WI, 54634 

ZYUP 00044L 1350 Elkhorn Road, Lake Geneva Haydam Trust E14051 HWY 33, Hillsboro 
WI, 54634 

JG 2600004 No Address (N3113) Town of 
Geneva 

Haydam Trust E14051 HWY 33, Hillsboro 
WI, 54634 

JG 2600003B No Address Listed (N3129)- CTH H 
Town of Geneva 

Jose & Brenda 
Chavez 

N3129 CTH H, Lake 
Geneva, WI 53147 

JG 2600003C N3129 CTH H, Town of Geneva Mariano Garcia N3135 CTH H, Lake 
Geneva, WI 53147 

GAP N3135 CTH H, Town of Geneva Mariano Garcia N3135 CTH H, Lake 
Geneva, WI 53147 

ZYUP 00043A 1351 Elkhorn Road Granville 
Building, LLC 

501 W Burbank St, Harvard, 
IL 60033 

ZYUP 00043 1300 Cemetery Road Mario A Garcia N3369 Juniper Road, Lake 
Geneva, WI 53147 

ZA 93000002 Lot 2 CSM 930 - Cemetery Road LSS Manor, LLC - 
Lake Geneva 

647 W. Virginia St #300, 
Milwaukee, WI 53204 

JG 2600003A N3117 CTH H, Town of Geneva JohnMcBean, 
Alissa Tosti 

N3117 CTH H, Lake Geneva 
WI 53147 

JG 2600031 No Address (N3103) in the Town - 
Connected to 1350 Elkhorn Road 

Haydam Trust E14051 HWY 33, Hillsboro 
WI, 54634 

ZYUP 00037 No Address - Cemetery Road Belardi Family 
Investments 

PO Box 684, Mequon, WI 
53092 

ZA 400001 Lot 1 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road Mauricio 
Castaneda 

414 Fair Oaks, Williams Bay, 
WI 53191 

ZA 400002 Lot 2 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road Mauricio 
Castaneda 

414 Fair Oaks, Williams Bay, 
WI 53191 

ZA 400003 Lot 3 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road Mauricio 
Castaneda 

414 Fair Oaks, Williams Bay, 
WI 53191 

ZA 400004 Lot 4 CSM 4 - Cemetery Road Mauricio 
Castaneda 

414 Fair Oaks, Williams Bay, 
WI 53191 

ZYUP 00042 1363 Elkhorn Road (Curb & Gutter 
Only) 

Lincoln Holding 
Group 

W3234 McDonald Road, 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

ZUOP00034  Oak Hill Cemetery  

*Denotes property currently within Town of Geneva 

 

 

 

 
 

 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

Exhibit E‐ Summary of Properties 
 
Property Owner     Total Estimated 
& Tax Number     Assessment 

 
HAYDAM TRUST 
Mail: E14051 HWY 33 
Hillsboro, WI 54634 
Physical: 1342 Elkhorn Rd 
ZYUP 00044C      $22,636.61 
 
HAYDAM TRUST 
Mail: E14051 HWY 33 
Hillsboro, WI 54634 
Physical: 1350 Elkhorn Rd 
ZYUP 00044L      $22,636.61 
 
GRANVILLE BUILDING, LLC 
Mail: 501 W Burbank St 
Harvard, IL 60033 
Physical: 1351 Elkhorn Rd 
ZYUP 00043A      $22,636.61 
 
LSS Manor, LLC 
Mail: 647 W. Virginia St #300 
Milwaukee, WI 53204 
Physical: Lot 2 CSM 930 Cemetery Road 
ZA 93000002      $54,669.71 
 
Mario A Garcia 
Mail: N3369 Juniper Road 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical: 1300 Cemetery Road 
ZYUP 0043      $22,636.61 
 
BELARDI FAMILY INVESTMENTS 
Mail: PO Box 684 
Mequon, WI 53092 
Physical: Cemetery Road 
ZYUP 00037      $49,926.95 
 
MAURICIO CASTANEDA 
Mail: 414 Fair Oaks 
Williams Bay, WI 53191 
Physical: Lot 1, CSM 4 Cemetery Road 
ZA 400001      $54,669.71 
 
 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

MAURICIO CASTANEDA 
Mail: 414 Fair Oaks 
Williams Bay, WI 53191 
Physical: Lot 2, CSM 4 Cemetery Road 
ZA 400002      $54,669.71 
 
MAURICIO CASTANEDA 
Mail: 414 Fair Oaks 
Williams Bay, WI 53191 
Physical: Lot 3, CSM 4 Cemetery Road 
ZA 400003      $54,669.71 
 
MAURICIO CASTANEDA 
Mail: 414 Fair Oaks 
Williams Bay, WI 53191 
Physical: Lot 4, CSM 4 Cemetery Road 
ZA 400004      $54,669.71 
 
LINCOLN HOLDING GROUP 
Mail: W3234 McDonald Road 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical: 1363 Elkhorn Road 
ZYUP 00042      $15,897.02 
 
OAK HILL CEMETERY 
Mail:  
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical:  
ZYUP 00034      $26,875.62 
 
 
TOWN OF GENEVA BENEFFITED PARCELS 
 
HAYDAM TRUST 
Mail: E14051 HWY 33 
Hillsboro WI, 54634 
Physical: N3103 CTH H 
JG 2600031      $22,636.61 
 
HAYDAM TRUST 
Mail: E14051 HWY 33 
Hillsboro WI, 54634 
Physical: N3113 CTH H 
JG 260004      $22,636.61 
 
JOSE & BRENDA CHAVEZ 
Mail: N3129 CTH H 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical: N3129 CTH H 



Special Assessment Report 
 

 

 

April 2018 

 

 

JG 2600003B      $22,636.61 
 
MARIANO GARCIA 
Mail: N3135 CTH H 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical: N3135 CTH H 
JG 2600003C      $22,636.61 
 
JOHN MCNEAN & ALISSA TOSTI 
Mail: N3117 CTH H 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Physical: N3117 CTH H 
JG 2600003A      $22,636.61 



FN:

FN:

8

'

'

S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

PROJECT:

RELEASE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS:

www.kapurengineers.com

1224 PINE STREET
BURLINGTON, WISCONSIN  53105
Phone: 262.767.2747         Fax: 262.767.2750

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

we listen.  we innovate.
we turn your vision into reality.

SCALE:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

SHEET NUMBER:

LOCATION:

DATE:

C100

GLG
17.0449

#
#
#
#
#
#
#

# #
#
#
#
#
#
#

#
#
#
#
#
#

1/8/2018

EXHIBITS

CEMETERY ROAD

CEMETERY UTILITY
EXTENSION

LAKE GENEVA, WI

Feet

0 80 160

Feet

0 80 160

SIX (6) WATER MAIN BENEFITED PROPERTIES

SIX (7) CURB & GUTTER BENEFITED PROPERTIES

SIX (15) SANITARY SEWER BENEFITED PROPERTIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.18%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.93%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.34%

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.13%

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.21%

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.86%

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.26%

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.85%

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.24%

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.86%

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.73%

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.85%

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.12%

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.26%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.42%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.67%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.80%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.21%

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.10%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.01%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.81%

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.16%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.63%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.19%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.08%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.76%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.38%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.86%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.56%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.78%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.22%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-3.94%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.07%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.87%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.02%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-0.70%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1.37%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.27%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.70%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2.74%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-4.02%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-5.37%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-8.71%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-8.36%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-7.83%

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00037 BELARDI FAMILY INVESTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00043 MARIO GARCIA 1300 CEMETERY ROAD (Water Service from Elkhorn Road)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00043A GRANVILLE BUILDING 1351 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ZYUP 00042 LINCOLN HOLDING GROUP 1363 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZA 93000002 LSS MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003B N3129 CTH JOSE CHAVEZ (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003A JOHN MCBEAN N3117 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAP JG 2600003C N3135 CTH H MARIANO GARCIA (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG2600004 HAYDAM TRUST N3113 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP00044L HAYDAM TRUST 1350 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN STREET (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZUP00044C HAYDAM TRUST 1342 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (WC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZWH00007F  HAYDAM TRUST 1350 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (San)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZA 40001-4 MAURICIO CASTANEDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1227 Grant Street No WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJP INVESTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTH H (ELKHORN RD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG2600031 HAYDAM TRUST N3103 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Design\170449_Design.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C101 FOR ENLARGEMENT



8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

8

'
'
S

A

N

PROJECT:

RELEASE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS:

www.kapurengineers.com

1224 PINE STREET
BURLINGTON, WISCONSIN  53105
Phone: 262.767.2747         Fax: 262.767.2750

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

we listen.  we innovate.
we turn your vision into reality.

SCALE:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

SHEET NUMBER:

LOCATION:

DATE:

C101

GLG
17.0449

#
#
#
#
#
#
#

# #
#
#
#
#
#
#

#
#
#
#
#
#

1/8/2018

EXHIBITS

CEMETERY
ENLARGEMENT

CEMETERY UTILITY
EXTENSION

LAKE GENEVA, WI

Feet

0 100 200

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00037 BELARDI FAMILY INVESTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00043 MARIO GARCIA 1300 CEMETERY ROAD (Water Service from Elkhorn Road)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00043A GRANVILLE BUILDING 1351 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ZYUP 00042 LINCOLN HOLDING GROUP 1363 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZA 93000002 LSS MANOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003B N3129 CTH JOSE CHAVEZ (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003A JOHN MCBEAN N3117 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAP JG 2600003C N3135 CTH H MARIANO GARCIA (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG2600004 HAYDAM TRUST N3113 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP00044L HAYDAM TRUST 1350 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN STREET (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZUP00044C HAYDAM TRUST 1342 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (WC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00044D HAYDAM TRUST 1340 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (San)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZWH00007F  HAYDAM TRUST 1350 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (San)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZA 40001-4 MAURICIO CASTANEDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1227 Grant Street No WC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TJP INVESTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTH H (ELKHORN RD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG2600031 HAYDAM TRUST N3103 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Design\170449_Design.dwg



8

'
'
S

A

N

8''SAN

8''SAN

8
'
'
S

A
N

8
'
'
S

A
N

PROJECT:

RELEASE:

SHEET:

REVISIONS:

www.kapurengineers.com

1224 PINE STREET
BURLINGTON, WISCONSIN  53105
Phone: 262.767.2747         Fax: 262.767.2750

NORTH ARROW:

SEAL:

PROJECT MANAGER:
PROJECT NUMBER:

we listen.  we innovate.
we turn your vision into reality.

SCALE:

# DATE DESCRIPTION

SHEET NUMBER:

LOCATION:

DATE:

C200

GLG
17.0449

#
#
#
#
#
#
#

# #
#
#
#
#
#
#

#
#
#
#
#
#

1/8/2018

EXHIBITS

CTH H

CEMETERY UTILITY
EXTENSION

LAKE GENEVA, WI

Feet

0 60 120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.77%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.55%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.93%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.34%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.33%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.18%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.26%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.21%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.22%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.04%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.92%

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.56%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.15%

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.49%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.14%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.52%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.76%

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.76%

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY ROAD C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. SAN MH 8" PVC N I.E 888.90 8" PVC W I.E. 888.73 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00043A GRANVILLE BUILDING 1351 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
 ZYUP 00042 LINCOLN HOLDING GROUP 1363 ELKHORN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003B N3129 CTH JOSE CHAVEZ (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG 2600003A JOHN MCBEAN N3117 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAP JG 2600003C N3135 CTH H MARIANO GARCIA (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JG2600004 HAYDAM TRUST N3113 CTH H (Town of Geneva)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP00044L HAYDAM TRUST 1350 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOGAN STREET (UNIMPROVED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZUP00044C HAYDAM TRUST 1342 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (WC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZYUP 00044D HAYDAM TRUST 1340 Elkhorn Road City of Lake Geneva (San)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CTH H (ELKHORN RD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGEWOOD DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME: D:\Walworth_Co\Lake Geneva_City\Gov\170449 Cemetery Road Utility Project\Design\170449_Design.dwg



Cemetery Rd - Assessment Eligibility

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and
is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be

accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
© Kapur and Associates, Inc.

0.1

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Miles0.10

Notes
GREEN DOTS - SEWER                   
YELLOW DOTS - DEFERRED SEWER   
BLUE DOTS - WATER
RED DOTS - CURB & GUTTER

Legend

0.07

06/12/2018
WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Street Names
Private Roads
Addresses @ 5000
Hydrants
Valves

Fitting: Cross
Fitting: Tee
Butterfly Valve/Gate Valve
Hydrant Valve
Main Valve
Plug
Valve Manhole

Curb Stops
Water Features

Air Release
Booster Station
Drinking Fountain
Meter Box
Meter Pit
Reducer
Water Tower
Well

Water Main Breaks
2015 (3)
2010 - 2014 (28)
2005 - 2009 (26)
2000 - 2004 (34)
1994 - 1999 (18)

Water Mains
Main
Hydrant Lead
Service
Abandoned
Other

Manhole
Force Main Valve
Clean Out Valve
Air Release Valve
Lift Station
Treatment Facility
Basement Backups
Illegal Connections
Gravity Main
Force Main
Abandoned Gravity Main
Abandoned Force Main
Seepage Inlet
Tax Parcels (Air Photo)
Monitoring Wells
City Limits Mask
Aerial Photo 2015

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



5/10/2018

ITEM DESCRIPTION
Item Number Watermain Construction (6 Benefitted Properties) Item Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Price

204.0110 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 20 $45.00 900.00$           

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch CY 20 $32.00 640.00$           

460.1101 HMA Pavement 4 LT 28-58 S, Item also includes tack coat (455.0605). TON 4 $325.00 1,300.00$        

628.2004 Erosion Mat Urban Class I, Type B SY 410 $5.00 2,050.00$        
690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 80 $3.00 240.00$           

SPV.0060.01 Water Valve & Valve Box 8-Inch EACH 2 $2,800.00 5,600.00$        
SPV.0060.02 Hydrant Assemblies EACH 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$        
SPV.0060.03 Tracer Wire Access Box EACH 1 $325.00 325.00$           
SPV.0060.04 1" Curb stop/box with extension rod and tracer box EACH 6 $650.00 3,900.00$        
SPV.0060.05 1" Corp Stop EACH 6 $300.00 1,800.00$        
SPV.0090.01 C-900 Water Main 8-Inch LF 480 $130.00 62,400.00$      
SPV.0090.02 1" Water Service, HDPE LF 310 $75.00 23,250.00$      
SPV.0090.03 Hydrant Lead 6-Inch (Granular Backfill) LF 5 $115.00 575.00$           
SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$        

SPV.0180.01
Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil (625.0100), Mulching 
(627.0200), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140) SY 430 $12.00 5,160.00$        

20% Construction Contingency $23,628.00
18.6% Engineering $21,974.04

Sanitary Sewer Construction
Item Number Cemetery and CTH H (15 Benefitted Properties) Item Unit Quantity Bid Price Total Price

204.0120 Removing Asphaltic Surface SY 80 $22.50 1,800.00$        

305.0120 Base Aggregate Dense 1 1/4-Inch CY 30 $32.00 960.00$           

460.1101 HMA Pavement 4 MT 28-58 S, Item also includes tack coat (455.0605). TON 20 $325.00 6,500.00$        
628.1504 Silt Fence LF 510 $2.00 1,020.00$        
628.2004 Erosion Mat Urban Class I, Type B SY 1050 $5.00 5,250.00$        
628.7015 Inlet Protection Type C EACH 6 $50.00 300.00$           
690.0150 Sawing Asphalt LF 360 $3.00 1,080.00$        

SPV.0060.01 Sanitary Sewer Manhole Frame & Cover EACH 8 $500.00 4,000.00$        
SPV.0090.01 Sanitary Sewer 8-Inch PVC (Granular Backfill) LF 120 $130.00 15,600.00$      
SPV.0090.01 Sanitary Sewer 8-Inch PVC (Spoil Backfill) LF 1060 $100.00 106,000.00$    
SPV.0090.02 Sanitary Sewer Service LF 285 $95.00 27,075.00$      

SPV.0180.01
Restore Disturbed Areas - Includes Topsoil (625.0100), Mulching 
(627.0200), Fertilizer Type A (629.0205), Seeding Mix No. 40 (630.0140). SY 1050 $8.00 8,400.00$        

SPV.0105.01 Traffic Control LS 1 $25,000.00 25,000.00$      
SPV.200.01 Sanitary Sewer Manhole 48-Inch VF 120 $350.00 42,000.00$      

20% Construction Contingency $48,997.00
18.6% Engineering $45,567.21

CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
CEMETERY ROAD SEWER AND WATER EXTENSION

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Water Main $163,742.04

Sewer TOTAL $339,549.21



Cemetery Rd - Current Customer Services

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and
is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be

accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
© Kapur and Associates, Inc.

0.1

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Miles0.10

Notes
BLUE DOT - WATER CUSTOMER
GREEN DOT - SEWER CUSTOMER

Legend

0.07

06/12/2018
WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Street Names
Private Roads
Addresses @ 5000
Hydrants
Valves

Fitting: Cross
Fitting: Tee
Butterfly Valve/Gate Valve
Hydrant Valve
Main Valve
Plug
Valve Manhole

Curb Stops
Water Features

Air Release
Booster Station
Drinking Fountain
Meter Box
Meter Pit
Reducer
Water Tower
Well

Water Main Breaks
2015 (3)
2010 - 2014 (28)
2005 - 2009 (26)
2000 - 2004 (34)
1994 - 1999 (18)

Water Mains
Main
Hydrant Lead
Service
Abandoned
Other

Manhole
Force Main Valve
Clean Out Valve
Air Release Valve
Lift Station
Treatment Facility
Basement Backups
Illegal Connections
Gravity Main
Force Main
Abandoned Gravity Main
Abandoned Force Main
Seepage Inlet
Tax Parcels (Air Photo)
Monitoring Wells
City Limits Mask
Aerial Photo 2015

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Cemetery Rd - Current Municipality

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and
is for reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be

accurate, current, or otherwise reliable.
© Kapur and Associates, Inc.

0.1

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

Miles0.10

Notes
GREEN BOXED  - CITY PARCEL
RED BOXED - TOWN PARCEL

Legend

0.07

06/12/2018
WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Street Names
Private Roads
Addresses @ 5000
Hydrants
Valves

Fitting: Cross
Fitting: Tee
Butterfly Valve/Gate Valve
Hydrant Valve
Main Valve
Plug
Valve Manhole

Curb Stops
Water Features

Air Release
Booster Station
Drinking Fountain
Meter Box
Meter Pit
Reducer
Water Tower
Well

Water Main Breaks
2015 (3)
2010 - 2014 (28)
2005 - 2009 (26)
2000 - 2004 (34)
1994 - 1999 (18)

Water Mains
Main
Hydrant Lead
Service
Abandoned
Other

Manhole
Force Main Valve
Clean Out Valve
Air Release Valve
Lift Station
Treatment Facility
Basement Backups
Illegal Connections
Gravity Main
Force Main
Abandoned Gravity Main
Abandoned Force Main
Seepage Inlet
Tax Parcels (Air Photo)
Monitoring Wells
Aerial Photo 2015

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



 

EFFECTIVE:  March 16, 2016 
PSCW AUTHORIZATION:  2980-WR-101 

RATE FILE Sheet  No. 1 of 1  
 Schedule  No. X-2  
Public Service Commission of Wisconsin Amendment  No. 32    

Lake Geneva Utility Commission 

 Water Main Extension Rule 
 
 
Water mains will be extended for new customers on the following basis: 
 
A. Where the cost of the extension is to immediately be collected through assessment by the 

municipality against the abutting property, the procedure set forth under Wis. Stat. § 66.0703 
will apply, and no additional customer contribution to the utility will be required. 

 
B. Where the municipality is unwilling or unable to make a special assessment, the extension 

will be made on a customer-financed basis as follows: 
 
1. The applicant(s) will advance as a contribution in aid of construction the total amount 

equivalent to that which would have been assessed for all property under paragraph A. 
 
2. Part of the contribution required in paragraph B.1. will be refundable.  When 

additional customers are connected to the extended main within 10 years of the date of 
completion, contributions in aid of construction will be collected equal to the amount 
which would have been assessed under paragraph A. for the abutting property being 
served.  This amount will be refunded to the original contributor(s).  In no case will 
the contributions received from additional customers exceed the proportionate amount 
which would have been required under paragraph A., nor will it exceed the total 
assessable cost of the original extension. 

 
C. When a customer connects to a transmission main or connecting loop installed at utility 

expense within 10 years of the date of completion, there will be a contribution required of an 
amount equivalent to that which would have been assessed under paragraph A. 

 
 
 
  



(Could use either path below)

Schedule a Public Hearing

Notice to all affected owners

Hold Public Hearing

Proceed or Not with SA

Preparation of project 
manuals, project scope, 

bidding, etc.

Proceed with project bidding if 
not already completed

Project would still require the 
calculation of per lot cost in 

the event that future 
customers utilize the 

developer funded 
infrastructure

Cemetery Road - Water and Sewer - General Project Progression Options

If the project is not done using Special Assessment the curb and gutter 
funding will also have to be addressed further

Developer would be entitled 
to a refund of contribution 
(right of recovery) collected 
by and issued from City/UCAward work to lowest 

responsible bidder

Class notices in paper & hold 
bid opening

Bid Project out to obtain live 
numbers from contractors to 

include in SA terms

Assign Details of SA: amount, 
term, interest, due dates, 
deferrments & connection 

deadline

Use Engineering Estimate to 
begin SA and Public Hearing

Install Water and Sewer (Refer to Water Main Extension Rule - Schedule No. X-2)

Fund by Special Assessment             
(Outlined in PSC X-2 (A): W.M.E.R.)

Fund with Impact Fees 
(Outlined in PSC X-2 (C): W.M.E.R.)

Fund by Developer                
(Outlined in PSC (B) X-2: W.M.E.R.)

All costs borne by developer 
and project would be 
reviewed by UC and 

Engineering

This phase of the project 
would include: 



Resolution 18-R56 
City of Lake Geneva Common Council















Resolution approved this 23rd day of July, 2018 by the Common Council of 
the City of Lake Geneva.

___________________________________________________
Tom Hartz, Mayor

___________________________________________________
Lana Kropf, City Clerk

















 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
This request is to approve a proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) to create a two lot CSM. 

The result of this CSM will be the creation of two compliant commercial lots, lot two will retain the 
existing commercial structure and lot one will be a vacant parcel. Both parcels will comply with all of 
the minimum standards of the Planned Development (PD) zoning. 

Project Details from submittal dated June 27, 2018CSM Map #1630 generated by surveyor Mark 
Bolender: 
The proposed CSM drawing is provided on one page on project No.1630  

Lot 1: 43,712 sq. ft. (vacant land) 

Lot 2: 43,393 sq. ft. 

Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed CSM has been submitted by staff to the Public Works & Utilities for review for 
compliance or concerns and none were identified as needed to be addressed with this land division. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CSM, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CSM. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM): 

Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the CSM as submitted. 

Agenda Item: 8 

Applicant: 
Jeremy Kinsey 
928 Clover St  
Lake Geneva, WI. 53147 

Request: 401 Host Drive 
Create a two lot Certified Survey Map (CSM)  













 
CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION 18-R50 

A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Mohammad Kaid, 313 W. 
Summerhill Pl., Oak Creek WI 53154, for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Mohammad 
Kaid for a land use change; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on July 16, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Mohammad Kaid, 313 W. Summerhill 
Pl., Oak Creek WI 53154, to utilize the property as an Indoor Commercial Entertainment land 
use, in the Central Business (CB) zoning district,  
 

Tax Key No. ZOP00244 
 
to include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23rd

 

 day of 
July 2018. 

 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 
The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the request to conduct an Ice 
Cream type facility at 270 Broad Street which is an Indoor Commercial Entertainment land use. 

The City reviews all Conditional Use Permits for this land use. The applicants have also submitted a 
request for the downtown review of the signage earlier on the agenda for this property. 
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 
The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Ordinance. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

Applicant: 
Mohammed Kaid 
313 W. Summerhill Pl. 
Oak Creek WI, 53154 
 

Request: Conditional Use Permit 
Indoor Commercial Entertainment 
270 Broad Street, Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
Tax Key No. ZOP00244 

Agenda Item: 9 



 2

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 



 3

Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 

 
 
 

















 
CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION 18-R51 

A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Robert D. Larson Trust, 
2403 Comstock Ct., Naperville, IL 60564, for to allow for SR-4 zoning setbacks in the ER-1 
Zoning District to construct a single family home.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Robert D. 
Larson Trust to use; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on July 16, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Robert D. Larson Trust 2403 Comstock 
Ct., Naperville, IL 60564, to utilize the property and to allow for SR-4 zoning setbacks in the 
ER-1 Zoning District,  
 

Tax Key No. ZGB00005 
 
to include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23rd

 

 day of 
July 2018. 

 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new residence. The 
project would begin with a complete removal of the existing residence. The applicants have carefully 
designed the proposed residence to increase building side yard setbacks, and have identified the building 
footprint area and impervious surface area coverages within the 100-foot lakeshore setback area. 
 
The proposed roof design will meet the maximum 35-foot height limit, as measured from the lowest 
exposed building perimeter to the vertical mid-point of the highest pitched roof surface. 
 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Existing and Proposed Site Plans:Lynch and Assoc. Project #18-5012 (dated 05/03/2018 respectively) 
The Site Plans for the existing and proposed homes demonstrate that the proposed home complies with 
all required setbacks. 
The proposed home provides the following setback measurements compared to the proposed home: 
 

Required in SR-4 Existing Home  Proposed Home 
Min Street Yard Setback 25 feet   22approx. feet to garage 26.3 feet to garage 
Min Lake Shore Setback no closer than 100’ 100 + feet   100 feet 
North Side Yard Setback 15’ total combined 5.8 feet to home  7.6 feet to home 
South Side Yard Setback Min. 6 feet to home 8.6 feet to home  7.9 feet to home 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item:10 

Applicant: 
Robert T. Larson Trust 
2403 Comstock Ct.  
Naperville, IL 60564 

Request: 
905 Bayview Drive 
Conditional Use Permit 
SR-4 Setbacks in ER-1 Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZGB00005 
 



 2

Rear (Lake Side) ElevationPlan: Sheet: 
The lower elevation provided on the conceptual renditionsdepict the proposed building’s tallest height. 
The Zoning Ordinance measures building height from the lowest exposed grade to the mid-point height 
of the tallest roof plane. This elevation depicts a maximum height of 34.0 feet, which complies with the 
height limit for both the ER-1 and the SR-4 zoning districts. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four sides of the 
proposed home. 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 



 3

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 

























VICINITY MAP

905 BAY VIEW DRIVE
LAKE GENEVA, WI

SHEET INDEX

C000 TITLE SHEET & VICINITY MAP

C100 FOUNDATION EXHIBIT

C200 EXISTING PROPERTY SITE PLAN

C300 SITE GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C400 LANDSCAPE PLAN

PLAT OF SURVEY
FOR

LA
K

E 
G

EN
EV

A
, 
W

I

9
0

5
 B

A
Y

V
IE

W
 D

R
IV

E
FO

U
N

D
A

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 F
O

R

C000

PLAN DATE 5.3.18

SHEET NO.

18-5012
PROJECT NO.

ISSUED FOR
REVIEW

LY
N

C
H

 &
 A

S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

N
TS

, 
LL

C

CONTACT INFORMATION

COMPANY NAME ADDRESS CONTACT PHONE EMAIL

LYNCH & ASSOCIATES 5482 S. WESTRIDGE DR.
NEW BERLIN, WI 53151

TIM LYNCH, P.E. 1.262.402.5040 tlynch@lynch-engineering.com

REVISIONS

NO. REVISION DATE

 1 UPDATE FOUNDATION LOCATION 05.09.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Shared\1 - Projects\2018\18.5012 S. Shore Custom - 905 Bayview Dr. Lake Geneva\CAD\18-5012 E0.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/9/2018 6:34 PM

./Lynch Sheet Set Template - REV.dst
AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LOCATION



100'

2

6

.
3

'

3'-0"
8'-0"

3'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
3'-0"

7'-6"
2'-8"

9'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
6'-0"

8'-0"
14'-0"

3'-0"
8'-0"

12/12

7
.
9
'

7
.
9
'

7
.
6
'

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

FOUNDATION EXHIBIT

DRAWING BY: BEN

FIELD WORK BY: SCO

NOTE: Proposed finished yard as shown on this drawing

is a suggested grade and should be verified by the owner

and/or the builder and approved by the building inspector.

Erosion control measures are suggested and must be

verified/adjusted by the builder and/or building inspector

based on site conditions.

Mortgage Inspection

Monumentation has been waived in

accordance with A-5 5.01 (b) of the

Wisconsin Administrative Code.

I have surveyed the above-described property and the above map is a true

representation thereof and shows the size and location of the property, its exterior

boundaries, the location and dimensions of all structures thereon, fences, apparent

easements and roadways, and visible encroachments, if any.

No title commitment or results of a title search were provided to this office pertaining

to this survey. This Plat Of Survey may not reflect easements of record,

encumbrances, restrictions, ownership, title evidence, or other facts that a current

and accurate title search may disclose.

This survey is made for the exclusive use of the present owners of the property, and

also those who purchase, mortgage, or insure the title thereto within one (1) year

from date hereof; and as to them I warrant the accuracy of said survey map.

__________________________________________________________

March 21, 2018

February 28, 2018

LOCATION: 905 Bayview Drive, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

PREPARED FOR:
 
South Shore Custom Homes, LLC, 3 East Geneva Street, Box 880, Williams Bay, WI 53191; Phone: 262-245-5819

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Lot 5, Block 1, Geneva Bay Estates, located in the NW 

1

4

, NE 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E and the SW 

1

4

, SE 

1

4

, Section 35,

T2N, R17E, City of Lake Geneva; the SE 

1

4

, SW 

1

4

, Section 35, T2N, R17E, and the NE 

1

4

, NW 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E,

Walworth County, Wisconsin.

Survey No. 18-5012

N

S

E

W

1 INCH = 20 FEET

0' 20'

10' 30'

GRAPHIC SCALE

40'

5482 S. WESTRIDGE DRIVE

NEW BERLIN, WI 53151

(262) 402-5040

432 MILWAUKEE AVENUE

BURLINGTON, WI 53185

(262) 248-3697

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

L

A

K

E

STONE PATH

CENTERLINE OF SHORELINE PATH

G

E

N

E

V

A

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

LOT 5, TRACT 1

GENEVA BAY ESTATES

18,633 SQ. FT.

B
O

U
L
D

E
R

 
W

A
L
L

B

A

Y

V

I
E

W

 
 
D

R

I
V

E

(
6
6
'
 
R

I
G

H

T

 
O

F

 
W

A

Y

)

LOT 6

LOT 4

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

P
O

R
C

H

BUIILDING

SETBACK LINE

(TYPICAL)

1
0
0
'
 
S

H
O

R
E

L
I
N

E
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

(
C

I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
L
A

K
E

 
G

E
N

E
V

A
)

Page: C100

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°10'31"W 97.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
62' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Shared\1 - Projects\2018\18.5012 S. Shore Custom - 905 Bayview Dr. Lake Geneva\CAD\18-5012 S0.dwg





100'

2

6

.
3

'

3'-0"
8'-0"

3'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
3'-0"

7'-6"
2'-8"

9'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
6'-0"

8'-0"
14'-0"

3'-0"
8'-0"

12/12

7
.
9
'

7
.
9
'

7
.
6
'

LA
K

E 
G

EN
EV

A
, 
W

I

9
0
5
 B

A
Y
V

IE
W

 D
R
IV

E
P
ER

M
IT

 P
LA

T 
FO

R

C300

N
O

.
R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

B
Y

D
A

TE

PLAN DATE 05.03.2018

SHEET NO.

SCALE

0 10'

18-5012
PROJECT NO.

S
IT

E 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 &

 E
C

 P
LA

N

DESIGNED BY BRS

ISSUED FOR
REVIEW

LY
N

C
H

 &
 A

S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

N
TS

, 
LL

C

L

A

K

E

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

LOT 5

18,633 SQ. FT.

LOT 6

LOT 4

G

E

N

E

V

A

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

PROPOSED SITE DATA

LOT AREA:18,633 SF

FLOOR AREA:4,592 SF

FLOOR AREA RATIO:0.25

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA:7132 SF

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE RATIO:0.38

IMPERVIOUS SURFACE IN 100' SHORELINE SETBACK: 969 SF

B

A

Y

V

I
E

W

 
 
D

R

I
V

E

(
6
6
'
 
R

I
G

H

T

 
O

F

 
W

A

Y

)

LOCATION: 905 Bayview Drive, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

PREPARED FOR:
 
South Shore Custom Homes, LLC, 3 East Geneva Street, Box 880, Williams Bay, WI 53191; Phone: 262-245-5819

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Lot 5, Block 1, Geneva Bay Estates, located in the NW 

1

4

, NE 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E and the SW 

1

4

, SE 

1

4

, Section 35,

T2N, R17E, City of Lake Geneva; the SE 

1

4

, SW 

1

4

, Section 35, T2N, R17E, and the NE 

1

4

, NW 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E,

Walworth County, Wisconsin.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°10'31"W 97.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
62' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Shared\1 - Projects\2018\18.5012 S. Shore Custom - 905 Bayview Dr. Lake Geneva\CAD\18-5012 E0.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/10/2018 1:47 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SILT FENCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED DWELLING FFE:872.0 BUILDING HEIGHT:27.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GARAGE ELEVATION:872.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL  (DESIGN BY OTHERS)



100'

2

6

.
3

'

3'-0"
8'-0"

3'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
3'-0"

7'-6"
2'-8"

9'-0"
7'-6"

8'-0"
6'-0"

8'-0"
14'-0"

3'-0"
8'-0"

12/12

7
.
9
'

7
.
9
'

7
.
6
'

AUTUMN BLAZE MAPLE (AB) 3 4" Caliper

Acer rebrum 'Autumn Blaze'

BLOODGOOD JAPANESE MAPLE (BM) 1 1 

1

2

" Caliper

Acer palmatum

BOXWOOD " GREEN GEM" (GG) 30 18'' Tall

Buxus x 'Green Gem'

ALTHEA TREE, RED (AT) 1 1" Caliper

Hibuscus Syriacus

COMMON/BOTANICAL NAME            QUANTITY SIZE

LA
K

E 
G

EN
EV

A
, 
W

I

9
0
5
 B

A
Y
V

IE
W

 D
R
IV

E
P
ER

M
IT

 P
LA

T 
FO

R

C400

N
O

.
R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

B
Y

D
A

TE

PLAN DATE 05.03.2018

SHEET NO.

SCALE

0 10'

18-5012
PROJECT NO.

LA
N

D
S
C

A
P
E 

P
LA

N

DESIGNED BY BRS

ISSUED FOR
REVIEW

LY
N

C
H

 &
 A

S
S
O

C
IA

TE
S

EN
G

IN
EE

R
IN

G
 C

O
N

S
U

LT
A

N
TS

, 
LL

C

L

A

K

E

PROPOSED

CONCRETE

DRIVEWAY

LOT 5

18,633 SQ. FT.

LOT 6

LOT 4

G

E

N

E

V

A

EXISTING

BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
O

R
C

H

B

A

Y

V

I
E

W

 
 
D

R

I
V

E

(
6
6
'
 
R

I
G

H

T

 
O

F

 
W

A

Y

)

LOCATION: 905 Bayview Drive, Lake Geneva, Wisconsin

PREPARED FOR:
 
South Shore Custom Homes, LLC, 3 East Geneva Street, Box 880, Williams Bay, WI 53191; Phone: 262-245-5819

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

Lot 5, Block 1, Geneva Bay Estates, located in the NW 

1

4

, NE 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E and the SW 

1

4

, SE 

1

4

, Section 35,

T2N, R17E, City of Lake Geneva; the SE 

1

4

, SW 

1

4

, Section 35, T2N, R17E, and the NE 

1

4

, NW 

1

4

, Section 2, T1N, R17E,

Walworth County, Wisconsin.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S10°10'31"W 97.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
62' +/-

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLOT DATE:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILENAME:  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Shared\1 - Projects\2018\18.5012 S. Shore Custom - 905 Bayview Dr. Lake Geneva\CAD\18-5012 E0.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/10/2018 1:47 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED RETAINING WALL  (DESIGN BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA 12 (GG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA 1 (AB) 9 (GG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA 2 (AB) 1 (BM) 9 (GG)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE AREA 1 (AT)











 

 

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Description of Proposed Conditional Uses: 
The applicant is submitting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to propose a new boat slip at 962 Mariane 
Terrace. The slip would involve a wood pier with five wood cribs filled with rock. Detailed crib and 
decking designs are included in the submittal. The two slips are proposed to be 3 x 33 feetwould be 
connected to the100 foot long main pier by a4 x 32.5 foot catwalk. The boat slips would be parallel to 
the main pier and would be used for private boat docking and summer boat storage. 

The City conditions all Conditional Use Permits for boat slips and piers on approval from the DNR.A 
copy of the Wisconsin DNR Water Resources permit application is included in the submittal. 
 
As proposed, the new boat slip meets the 100-foot maximum length for piers (per Section 90-142 of the 
Lake Geneva Municipal Code). The pier meets the 12.5-foot setback from the adjacent riparian zone 
boundary (Section 90-143(e)). The pier does not seem to create an unlawful obstruction, although this 
will be confirmed by the required review by Wisconsin DNR.  
 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 

As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review: 
The proposed conditional use is fully consistent with the requirements of the Municipal Ordinance. 

 
Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

Applicant: 
Reeds Construction LLC 
W3199 S Lake Shore Drive 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 
 

Request: 905 Bayview Dr (ER-1) 
Boat Slip - Conditional Use Permit  
Robert D. Larson Trust 
2403 Comstock Ct., Naperville, IL 600564 
Tax Key No. ZGB00005 
 

Agenda Item: 11 



 

 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

4.  The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, 
and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will not 
impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by public 
agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 

finding would be one or more of the following: 

1.  In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

2.  Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

3.  The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any other 
plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the 
City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 



 

 

4.  The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

5.  The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

6.  The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above. 
3. Staff recommends the following additional condition of approval be attached. 

a. Conditional Use Permit approval is contingent on review and approval of the proposed 
slip by the Wisconsin DNR. 

 
 













































 
CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION 18-R53 

A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to Lawrence & Pamela 
Frankel, 1240 Dolphin Bay Apt 402, Sarasota FL 34242, for to allow for SR-4 zoning setbacks 
in the ER-1 Zoning District to construct a single family home.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of Lawrence & 
Pamela Frankel to use; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on July 16, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to Lawrence & Pamela Frankel, 1240 
Dolphin Bay Apt 402, Sarasota FL 34242, to utilize the property and to allow for SR-4 zoning 
setbacks in the ER-1 Zoning District,  
 

Tax Key No. ZYUP00094E 
 
to include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23rd

 

 day of 
July 2018. 

 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 
 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new residence. The 
project would begin with a complete removal of the existing residence. The applicants have designed the 
proposed residence to meet building side yard setbacks, and have identified the building footprint area 
and impervious surface area coverages. 
 
The proposed roof design will meet the maximum 35-foot height limit, as measured from the lowest 
exposed building perimeter to the vertical mid-point of the highest pitched roof surface. 
 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Existing and Proposed Site Plans: 

Woodfield Homes Plans dated 06/11/2018 respectively) 
The Site Plans for the existing and proposed homes demonstrate that the proposed home complies with 
all required setbacks. 
The proposed home provides the following setback measurements compared to the proposed home: 
 

Required in SR-4 Proposed Home 
Min Street Yard Setback 25 feet   50+ feet to garage 
Min Lake Shore Setback no closer than 100’ 305 feet 
North Side Yard Setback 15’ total combined 8’10” feet to home (exceeds combined minimum) 
South Side Yard Setback Min. 6 feet to home 6’6” feet to home 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item:12 

Applicant: 
Lawrence & Pamela Frankel 
1240 Dolphin Bay Apt. 402 
Sarasota, FL 34242 

Request: 
75 Hillside Drive 
Conditional Use Permit 
SR-4 Setbacks in ER-1 Zoning District 
Tax Key No. ZYUP00094E 



 2

 

Rear Elevation Plan: Sheet: 
The lower elevation provided on the conceptual renditions depict the proposed building’s tallest height. 
The Zoning Ordinance measures building height from the lowest exposed grade to the mid-point height 
of the tallest roof plane. This elevation depicts a maximum height of 35.0 feet, which complies with the 
height limit for both the ER-1 and the SR-4 zoning districts. 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use includes modest increases in the setbacks provided on all four sides of the 
proposed home. 

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 



 3

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 

































 
CONDITIONAL USE RESOLUTION 18-R54 

A resolution authorizing the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to City of Lake Geneva, 918 
W. Main Street, Lake Geneva WI 53147, to allow for the installation of a sign with message 
board.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has considered the application of City of Lake 
Geneva to use; 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission held a Public Hearing thereon pursuant to proper 
notice given on July 16, 2018. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Zoning Administrator be, and is 
hereby authorized, to issue a Conditional Use Permit to City of Lake Geneva, to utilize the 
property and to allow for installation of a sign located in the ER-1 Zoning District,  
 

Tax Key No. ZOP00348 
 
to include all affirmative findings of fact and note staff recommendations. 
 
 Granted by action of the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva this 23rd

 

 day of 
July 2018. 

 
 

___________________________ 
 Tom Hartz, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

___________________________ 
Lana Kropf, City Clerk 
 



 1

STAFF REPORT 
To Lake Geneva Plan Commission 

Meeting Date:  July 16, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: 
The applicant is submitting a proposal for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a new message sign to be 
located at the public library property. The project has been completed with the mistake of allowing the 
installation from the zoning department. 
 
The director has been informed of the sign message guidelines as not to change messages greater than 
one message per minute in accordance with the signage regulations found in zoning section 98-800.   
The installation complies with all setbacks, elevations, and designs. 
 

Project Details from CUP Submittal 

The proposed project submittal meets or exceeds all requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

ElevationPlan: 
The elevation provided on the conceptual renditions depicts the proposed sign. The Zoning Ordinance 
measures sign height from the lowest exposed grade to the highest point. This elevation depicts a 
maximum height of 6’9”, which complies with the height limit for zoning code. 

The sign is a message generated LED & full color RGB electronic messaging center. 

Plans provided by Bauer Sign Company  

Generated by Bob Hacker, dated January 28, 2018, revised on March 2, 2018 

 
Action by the Plan Commission: 
Recommendation to the Common Council on the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP): 
As part of the consideration of the requested CUP, the Plan Commission is required to: 

 Provide the Common Council with a recommendation regarding the proposed CUP; 
 Include findings required by the Zoning Ordinance for CUPs; and, 
 Provide specific suggested requirements to modify the project as submitted. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item:13 

Applicant: 
City of Lake Geneva Library 
918 W. Main St 
Lake Geneva, WI 53147 

Request: 
Conditional Use Permit 
Signage in Central Business (CB) 
Tax Key No. ZOP00348 



 2

Staff Review Comments: 
The proposed conditional use was submitted after staff directed the installation in error.  

 

Required Plan Commission Findings on the CUP for Recommendation to the Common Council: 

A proposed CUP must be reviewed by the standards, below: 

A. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend approval, then the appropriate 
fact finding would be all of the following: 
a. In general, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 

policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does not result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 
implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by, and will 
not impose an undue burden on any improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 
public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh all potential adverse 
impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s proposal 
and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

B. If, after the public hearing, the Commission wishes to recommend denial, then the appropriate fact 
finding would be one or more of the following: 

a. In general, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, objectives, 
policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any other plan, 
program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by the City. 

b. Specific to this site, the proposed conditional use is not in harmony with the purposes, goals, 
objectives, policies and standards of the City's Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and any 
other plan, program, or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to official notice by 
the City. 

c. The proposed conditional use in its proposed location, and as depicted on the required site plan 
does result in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the 
neighborhood, environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public 
property or rights-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, 
either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the 



 3

implementation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the Comprehensive Plan or any 
other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to official 
notice by the City or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide development. 

d. The proposed conditional use does not maintain the desired consistency of land uses, land use 
intensities, and land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property. 

e. The proposed conditional use is not located in an area that will be adequately served by, and 
will impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services 
provided by public agencies serving the subject property. 

f. The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use do not outweigh all potential 
adverse impacts of the proposed conditional use after taking into consideration the Applicant’s 
proposal and any requirements recommended by the Applicant to ameliorate such impacts. 

 
Staff Recommendation on the proposed Conditional Use Permit: 

1. Staff recommends that the Plan Commission recommend approval of the proposed conditional 
use as submitted, with the findings under A.1-6., above. 

2. Staff recommends the Plan Commission adopt the affirmative set of findings provided above, 
noting that the proposal is a fully consistent with the setback requirements of the SR-4 zoning 
district, and results in compliance to the setbacks on all four sides of the building over the current 
home. 







Resolution No. 18-R42, Page 1 of 2 
 

NOTICE OF REFERENDUM ELECTION REGARDING  
CITY OF LAKE GENEVA RESOLUTION 18-R42 

“CLOSING DARK STORE LOOPHOLES” 
 
THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LAKE GENEVA DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Lake Geneva is a political subdivision of the State of Wisconsin; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Lake Geneva is interested in closing the State of Wisconsin “Dark Store” 
loopholes; and 
 
Whereas, home owners in Wisconsin already pay 70% of the total statewide property tax levy; and  
 
Whereas, home owners in the City of Lake Geneva already pay 72% of the total City property tax levy; 
and  
 
Whereas, that disproportionate burden is about to get much worse unless the Legislature closes loopholes 
that national chains like Walgreens, and big box retail establishments like Target are using across the 
country to gain dramatic reductions in their property tax bills at the expense of homeowners and other 
taxpayers; and   
 
Whereas, a carefully-orchestrated wave of 100s of lawsuits in Wisconsin is forcing assessors to slash the 
market value of thriving national retail stores, shifting their tax burden to local mom and pop shops and 
homeowners; and   
 
Whereas, Walgreens and CVS stores in Wisconsin have argued in communities across the state that the 
assessed value of their property for property tax purposes should be only half of its actual value on the open 
market; and  
 
Whereas, in many cases the courts have sided with Walgreens and CVS, requiring communities to refund 
tax revenue back to the stores; and  
 
Whereas, there are over 200 Walgreens stores located in Wisconsin’s cities and villages; and  
 
Whereas, Target, Lowe’s, Meijer, Best Buy, and other big box chains are using what is known as the 
“Dark Store Theory” to argue that the assessed value of a new, thriving store should be based on comparing 
their buildings to nearby vacant or abandoned stores from a different market segment; and 
 
Whereas, Commercial Property assessments in the City of Lake between 2014 and 2015 dropped 1.7%, 
thus leading to increased dependence on home owners in the City.  In addition Best Buy was able to drop 
its property value by $2.2 million in 2016; and  
 
Whereas, the Republican-controlled Indiana state Legislature has on two occasions in the last two years  
overwhelmingly passed legislation prohibiting assessors from valuing new big box stores the same as 
nearby abandoned stores from a different market segment; and  
 
Whereas, the Michigan state house overwhelmingly passed similar legislation in May of 2016.   
 



Resolution No. 18-R42, Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Lake Geneva wishes to gauge the voters interest in “Closing Dark Store 
Loopholes”;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva does 
hereby approve a Non-Binding Referendum for the November 6, 2018 election as follows: 
 
Should the state legislature protect residential property taxpayers by preventing commercial and 
manufacturing property owners from using tax loopholes that shift an ever-increasing tax burden to 
homeowners who already pay 68% of the statewide property tax levy by enacting legislation that: 1) 
prohibits using closed, vacant (dark) properties as comparable properties for determining the 
assessed value of open, occupied, and fully operational properties; and 2) overturns the 2008 
Wisconsin Supreme Court decision in Walgreens v. City of Madison, which is being interpreted by 
the courts as requiring municipalities to assess many leased commercial properties at a substantial 
discount, often 50% below the actual sale prices of such properties 
 
A YES

 

 vote will recommend that the State Legislature prevent commercial and manufacturing property 
owners from using tax loopholes that shift an ever-increasing tax burden to homeowners 

A NO vote will recommend that the State Legislature not

 

 prevent commercial and manufacturing property 
owners from using tax loopholes that shift an ever-increasing tax burden to homeowners 

Adopted by the Common Council of the City of Lake Geneva on May 29, 2018. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Tom Hartz, Mayor 
 
    ATTEST: _____________________________________ 
      Lana Kropf, City Clerk 



                         11/28/16 - 12/9/167/2/18 - 7/13/18

Total:
$10,468.98

Checks over $5,000:
6,878.91$          Lake Geneva Utility Commission - 2nd Quarter Water/Sewer Bills

-$                  
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

City of Lake Geneva
Finance, License, & Regulation Committee

July 17, 2018

              Prepaid Checks



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Check Register Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 6/27/2018 - 7/3/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:53PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Summary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount

06/30/2018 67738 2433 EAGLE MEDIA INC 10.00- V

07/03/2018 67931 5224 FOLLENSBEE, BRENDA 61.92

07/03/2018 67932 3024 MUTUAL OF OMAHA 1,285.54

07/03/2018 67933 5225 NETTESHEIM, GLEN 152.60

07/03/2018 67934 5226 PAPENFUS, CINDY 52.44

07/03/2018 67935 3001 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP 256.37

07/03/2018 67936 4973 US BANK 1,283.66

07/03/2018 67937 5043 WALMART COMMUNITY 29.20

          Grand Totals:  3,111.73

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

11-00-00-16340 211.03 .00 211.03

11-00-00-21100 280.47 3,004.03- 2,723.56-

11-10-20-51340 406.67 .00 406.67

11-21-00-51340 565.24 .00 565.24

11-21-00-51380 .00 10.00- 10.00-

11-21-00-53100 37.45 .00 37.45

11-21-00-53300 152.60 .00 152.60

11-21-00-53310 708.44 .00 708.44

11-21-00-53420 83.95 270.47- 186.52-

11-21-00-53610 132.92 .00 132.92

11-21-00-53800 177.81 .00 177.81

11-21-00-53990 341.00 .00 341.00

11-21-00-54110 125.00 .00 125.00

11-24-00-53300 61.92 .00 61.92

42-00-00-21100 .00 16.81- 16.81-

42-34-50-51370 16.81 .00 16.81

48-00-00-21100 .00 58.36- 58.36-

48-00-00-51370 29.16 .00 29.16

48-00-00-53100 29.20 .00 29.20

61-00-00-21100 .00 89.54- 89.54-

61-00-00-92630 89.54 .00 89.54

62-00-00-21100 .00 166.83- 166.83-

62-00-00-23841 68.22 .00 68.22

62-00-00-92630 98.61 .00 98.61

99-00-00-21100 .00 56.63- 56.63-

99-00-00-51370 56.63 .00 56.63

          Grand Totals:  3,672.67 3,672.67- .00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Check Register Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 7/13/2018 - 7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:57PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Summary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Amount

07/13/2018 68064 2273 CHASE CARD SERVICES 3,422.33

07/13/2018 68065 2884 LAKE GENEVA UTILITY 6,878.91

07/13/2018 68066 4918 TIME WARNER CABLE 167.74

          Grand Totals:  10,468.98

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Debit Credit Proof

11-00-00-21100 349.00 7,565.84- 7,216.84-

11-14-20-53310 139.00 114.00- 25.00

11-14-20-53320 1,310.00 235.00- 1,075.00

11-14-30-53320 130.00 .00 130.00

11-16-10-52210 167.74 .00 167.74

11-16-10-52260 460.34 .00 460.34

11-22-00-51440 455.00 .00 455.00

11-22-00-52260 496.15 .00 496.15

11-22-00-53400 133.69 .00 133.69

11-22-00-53500 157.45 .00 157.45

11-22-00-58000 175.37 .00 175.37

11-24-00-53320 465.61 .00 465.61

11-32-10-52260 248.55 .00 248.55

11-32-10-53320 150.00 .00 150.00

11-32-10-53400 30.00 .00 30.00

11-51-10-52260 475.36 .00 475.36

11-52-00-52260 1,738.12 .00 1,738.12

11-52-00-52270 117.45 .00 117.45

11-52-00-59510 180.40 .00 180.40

11-52-01-52260 535.61 .00 535.61

40-00-00-21100 19.85 2,790.88- 2,771.03-

40-54-10-53620 409.01 19.85- 389.16

40-54-10-53990 292.03 .00 292.03

40-55-10-52260 665.60 .00 665.60

40-55-20-52260 1,424.24 .00 1,424.24

42-00-00-21100 .00 28.80- 28.80-

42-34-50-52200 28.80 .00 28.80

48-00-00-21100 .00 70.80- 70.80-

48-00-00-52260 70.80 .00 70.80

99-00-00-21100 .00 381.51- 381.51-

99-00-00-52220 325.86 .00 325.86

99-00-00-53120 55.65 .00 55.65

          Grand Totals:  11,206.68 11,206.68- .00

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check



Fund #

 1.   General Fund 11 88,893.78$            

 2.    Debt Service 20 -$                      

 3.   TID #4 34 -$                      

 4.   Lakefront 40 8,402.10$              

 5.   Capital Projects 43,52 16,192.45$            

 6.   Parking 42 7,688.26$              

 7.   Cemetery 48 436.61$                 

 8.   Equipment Replacement 50 22.76$                   

 9.   Library Fund 99 1,571.03$              

10.  Impact Fees 45 14,220.00$            

11. Tourism Commission 47 -$                      

Total All Funds $137,426.99

City of Lake Geneva

Finance, License, & Regulation Committee

July 17, 2018

Accounts Payable 



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE UNPAID ITEMS OVER $5,000

FINANCE, LICENSE, & REGULATION COMMITTEE
7/17/2018

137,426.99$       

ITEMS > $5,000

John's Disposal Service Inc - July Refuse & Recycling Service 39,152.40$         

Alliant Energy - July Electric Bills 20,597.98$         

Lake Geneva Utility Commission - Sewer & Water Impact Fees 14,220.00$         

Down to Earth Contractors - Storm Sewer Repairs 12,695.50$         

YMCA - July/August Payment 9,000.00$           

Accurate Appraisal - 2018 Contract Payment 6,000.00$           

-$                   

-$                   

Balance of Other Items 35,761.11$         

TOTAL UNPAID ACCOUNTS PAYABLE



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     1

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Only unpaid invoices included.

Invoice Detail.GL account (2 Characters) = {<>} "61"

Invoice Detail.GL account (2 Characters) = {<>} "62"

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

A+ GRAPHICS & PRINTING

19223 06/07/2018 BIRD CITY STICKERS 11-10-00-57800  CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT 24.00

          Total A+ GRAPHICS & PRINTING: 24.00

ACCURATE APPRAISAL LLC

ACCAPP2018- 07/02/2018 2018 CONTRACT PAYMENT 11-15-40-52100  ASSESSOR CONTRACTED SERVICES 6,000.00

          Total ACCURATE APPRAISAL LLC: 6,000.00

ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES

A40000009367 06/15/2018 LANDFILL USE-6.34 TN 11-36-00-52960  SOLID WASTE-STREET DEPT 581.09

A40000009411 06/30/2018 LANDFILL USE 11-36-00-52960  SOLID WASTE-STREET DEPT 1,439.27

          Total ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES: 2,020.36

ALLIANT ENERGY

2 07/01/2018 HAVENWOOD FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 11.21

2 07/01/2018 SOUTH/WELLS 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS .00

2 07/01/2018 WELLS ST FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 17.63

2 07/01/2018 MAIN ST LIGHTS 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 100.51

2 07/01/2018 1055 CAREY 11-32-10-52220  ST DEPT BLDG ELECTRICITY 123.60

2 07/01/2018 BROAD ST TRAFFIC SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 40.05

2 07/01/2018 HWY 50/12 FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 15.01

2 07/01/2018 W COOK SIREN 11-29-00-52220  SIRENS ELECTRICTY 19.53

2 07/01/2018 RIVIERA ELECTRIC 40-55-30-52220  PIER ELECTRIC 4,166.93

2 07/01/2018 BEACH HOUSE 40-54-10-52220  BEACH ELECTRIC 476.26

2 07/01/2018 INTERCHANGE NORTH SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 58.51

2 07/01/2018 HWY 120/BLOOMFIELD LIGHT 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 44.15

2 07/01/2018 LIBRARY PARK OUTSIDE 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 22.01

2 07/01/2018 EDWARDS BLVD/WAL MART SI 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 68.39

2 07/01/2018 SAGE ST SIREN 11-29-00-52220  SIRENS ELECTRICTY 5.03

2 07/01/2018 STREET LIGHTS MS-2 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 243.97

2 07/01/2018 DUNN FIELD 11-52-00-59220  DUNN FIELD ELECTRIC 108.72

2 07/01/2018 SNAKE RD/HWY 50 FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 11.07

2 07/01/2018 VETS PARK/TOWNLINE RD 11-52-01-52220  VETS PARKS ELECTRICITY 477.49

2 07/01/2018 MUSEUM-256 MILL ST 11-51-10-52220  MUSEUM-ELECTRICITY 1,014.74

2 07/01/2018 WELLS ST FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 14.58

2 07/01/2018 HOST DRIVE WATER TOWER 11-22-00-52220  FIREHOUSE ELECTRICITY 106.84

2 07/01/2018 GENEVA SQUARE SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 8.29

2 07/01/2018 LIBRARY 99-00-00-52220  LIBRARY UTILITIES 1,262.03

2 07/01/2018 GENEVA ST LOT LIGHTS 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 173.89

2 07/01/2018 WELLS ST FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 64.61

2 07/01/2018 WRIGLEY DR/FLAT IRON PARK 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 124.33

2 07/01/2018 W HWY 50 FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 11.07

2 07/01/2018 LIBRARY PARK RESTROOM 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 37.76

2 07/01/2018 724 WILLIAMS ST 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 20.86

2 07/01/2018 S LAKESHORE DR FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 11.57

2 07/01/2018 S LAKE SHORE DRIVE 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 26.34

2 07/01/2018 COOK ST/HWY 50 SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 1.23



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     2

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

2 07/01/2018 OAK HILL CEMETERY 48-00-00-52220  CEM ELECTRICITY EXP 49.84

2 07/01/2018 730 MARSHALL ST SIREN 11-29-00-52220  SIRENS ELECTRICTY 28.72

2 07/01/2018 TENNIS COURTS-CEN DEN 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 16.81

2 07/01/2018 CEMETERY 48-00-00-52220  CEM ELECTRICITY EXP .00

2 07/01/2018 389 EDWARDS SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 98.24

2 07/01/2018 HWY 50/12 SIGNAL 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 31.73

2 07/01/2018 RUSH ST/RUSHWOOD PARK 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 25.65

2 07/01/2018 700 GENEVA ST LOT 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 125.16

2 07/01/2018 1065 CAREY ST 11-32-10-52220  ST DEPT BLDG ELECTRICITY 416.60

2 07/01/2018 STREET LIGHTS 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 4,596.86

2 07/01/2018 VETS PARK SCOREBOARD 11-52-01-52220  VETS PARKS ELECTRICITY 223.07

2 07/01/2018 BAKER/SEMINARY PARK REST 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 28.47

2 07/01/2018 HWY 50 SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 108.22

2 07/01/2018 GEORGE ST FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 12.39

2 07/01/2018 1070 CAREY ST 11-32-10-52220  ST DEPT BLDG ELECTRICITY 84.72

2 07/01/2018 FLAT IRON PARK/WRIGLEY DR 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 16.70

2 07/01/2018 DODGE ST FLASHER 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 8.79

2 07/01/2018 IMPOUND LOT-1070 CAREY ST 11-21-00-52220  POLICE IMPOUND BLDG ELECTRIC 29.84

2 07/01/2018 FIRE HOUSE 11-22-00-52220  FIREHOUSE ELECTRICITY 817.03

2 07/01/2018 HWY 120/TOWLINE RD SIGNAL 11-34-10-52220  ELECTRICITY-FLASHERS 27.18

2 07/01/2018 201 EDWARDS SIREN 11-29-00-52220  SIRENS ELECTRICTY 19.41

2 07/01/2018 CITY HALL 11-16-10-52220  CITY HALL ELECTRICITY 4,559.61

2 07/01/2018 VETS PARK PAVILION 11-52-01-52220  VETS PARKS ELECTRICITY 199.43

2 07/01/2018 DONIAN PARK 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 88.16

2 07/01/2018 COBB PARK 11-52-00-52220  PARKS ELECTRICITY 28.02

2 07/01/2018 HAVENWOOD/MAIN ST SIGNAL 11-34-10-52230  STREET LIGHTS ELECTRICITY 69.12

          Total ALLIANT ENERGY: 20,597.98

ARROW PEST CONTROL INC

76343 07/05/2018 PEST CONTROL-JUL 11-16-10-53600  CITY HALL MAINT SERVICE COSTS 55.00

          Total ARROW PEST CONTROL INC: 55.00

AURORA EAP

18288 06/26/2018 3RD QTR FEE 11-10-20-51350  EAP PROGRAM 937.50

          Total AURORA EAP: 937.50

AURORA MEDICAL GROUP

IN 217 06/30/2018 EMP CLINIC-JUN 11-10-20-51330  HEALTH AND DENTAL CLAIMS 2,700.00

          Total AURORA MEDICAL GROUP: 2,700.00

BREEZY HILL NURSERY

I-215607 07/03/2018 PLANTING MAINT-JUL 42-34-50-52200  PARKING LOT PLANTING/MAINT 4,624.68

          Total BREEZY HILL NURSERY: 4,624.68

BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS

662-391473 07/02/2018 RHINO MOWER-TIRE PARTS 11-52-00-52500  EQUIPMENT REPAIR SERVICES 16.78

662-391659 07/05/2018 RHINO MOWER-DRIVE SHAFT  11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 6.69

662-391677 07/05/2018 TOOLS 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT .18

662-392111 07/12/2018 DIESEL-TRK #17 11-32-10-53410  VEHICLE-FUEL & OIL 144.88

          Total BUMPER TO BUMPER AUTO PARTS: 168.53



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     3

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

CDW GOVERNMENT INC

NBR3832 06/14/2018 PRINTER-CITY CLERK'S OFFIC 11-15-10-54500  COMPUTER IT SVC & EQUIPMENT 188.62

NCW5315 06/19/2018 COMPUTER CABLES-CITY HAL 50-00-00-58000  MISC/COMP EQUIP PURCHASES 22.76

NDC3857 06/20/2018 AUDIO CARD READER-CLERK'S  11-14-30-53100  CITY CLERK OFFICE SUPPLIES 36.14

NDN9524 06/22/2018 DVDS 11-11-00-52140  VIDEOTAPING EXPENSES 13.40

          Total CDW GOVERNMENT INC: 260.92

CELINA MEDINA

REFUND 7/7/1 07/10/2018 MEDINA-SEC DEP 7/7 40-55-10-23530  SECURITY DEPOSITS-UPPER RIV 1,000.00

REFUND 7/7/1 07/10/2018 MEDINA-SETUP,SEC GRD 7/7 40-55-10-46740  UPPER RIVIERA REVENUE 324.00-

          Total CELINA MEDINA: 676.00

CES

LKG/048255 06/29/2018 STREET LIGHT FUSE 11-34-10-52610  STREET LIGHTS REPAIRS 35.30

          Total CES: 35.30

CINTAS CORP

5011172701 06/29/2018 BURN RELIEF,TWEEZERS,ANTI 11-32-10-53900  FIRST AID AND SAFETY SUPPLIES 130.03

          Total CINTAS CORP: 130.03

CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

OF36595288 07/03/2018 ANNUAL ALARM INSPECTION 40-55-10-53600  UPPER RIVIERA MAINTENANCE 126.91

          Total CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION: 126.91

D&K SERVICES

20180211 06/27/2018 SEWER RODDING-RIVERA MAI 40-55-20-53600  RIV MAINTENANCE SERVICE COSTS 250.00

          Total D&K SERVICES: 250.00

DOWN TO EARTH CONTRACTORS INC

6800 06/20/2018 STORM SEWER REPAIR-WI & C 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 2,830.00

6801 06/20/2018 STORM SEWER REPAIR-BEHIN 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 1,738.00

6802 06/20/2018 STORM SEWER REPAIR-BAKE 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 1,480.00

6809 06/27/2018 STORM SEWER REPAIR-CENT 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 6,647.50

          Total DOWN TO EARTH CONTRACTORS INC: 12,695.50

DUNN LUMBER & TRUE VALUE

727642 06/22/2018 UMBRELLAS 42-34-50-53100  OFFICE SUPPLIES 13.98

727642 06/22/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD .70-

728499 06/29/2018 BUG SPRAY 42-34-50-53100  OFFICE SUPPLIES 7.99

728499 06/29/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD .40-

728500 06/29/2018 TAPE MEASURE 48-00-00-53400  CEM OPERATING SUPPLIES 19.99

728792 07/02/2018 BATTERIES 40-54-10-53520  BEACH MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 27.48

728792 07/02/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD 1.37-

728850 07/03/2018 BUCKET TRUCK-HEX BIT SET 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 15.99

728850 07/03/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD .80-

729143 07/06/2018 PAINT,SUPPLIES 11-52-00-53500  BLDG MAINT SUPPLIES-PARKS 158.90

729143 07/06/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD 1.50-

729392 07/09/2018 PLIERS 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 24.99

729392 07/09/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD 1.25-

729545 07/10/2018 IRRIGATION REPAIR 11-52-00-53520  GROUNDS MAINT SUPPLIES 1.78



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     4

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

729846 07/12/2018 CHARGER,BATTERIES,TUNEUP 11-32-10-53510  VEHICLE/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 64.97

729846 07/12/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD 3.25-

729911 07/12/2018 NUTS,BOLTS-FISHING PIER 40-52-10-53510  EQUIP MAINT SUPP-BUOYS,STALLS 13.28

729911 07/12/2018 DISCOUNT 11-21-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED-PD .66-

K28912 07/03/2018 BATTERIES 40-54-10-53520  BEACH MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 25.48

K28912 07/03/2018 BATTERIES RETURNED 40-54-10-53520  BEACH MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 27.48-

          Total DUNN LUMBER & TRUE VALUE: 337.42

FOSTER FUEREDI,CINDY

REFUND 6/30/ 07/02/2018 FOSTER FUEREDI-MAPLE-6/30/ 11-00-00-23530  SECURITY DEPOSITS 50.00

          Total FOSTER FUEREDI,CINDY: 50.00

GAGE MARINE CORP

152894 06/28/2018 LAUNCH PIER BUMPERS 40-52-11-52520  LAUNCH RAMP REPAIRS 905.50

          Total GAGE MARINE CORP: 905.50

GAPPA SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC

15502 06/29/2018 KEY 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 11.50

          Total GAPPA SECURITY SOLUTIONS LLC: 11.50

GENEVA LAKE WATER SAFETY

7/5/18 07/05/2018 MEGAPHONE 40-54-10-53520  BEACH MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 85.00

          Total GENEVA LAKE WATER SAFETY: 85.00

GRAINGER

9820147438 06/15/2018 STAFF HATS 42-34-50-51380  PARKING UNIFORMS 28.00

9820363514 06/15/2018 SAFETY HATS 42-34-50-51380  PARKING UNIFORMS 28.00

          Total GRAINGER: 56.00

HALL,FRAN

REFUND 6/27/ 06/29/2018 HALL-SEC DEP 6/27 40-55-10-23530  SECURITY DEPOSITS-UPPER RIV 1,000.00

REFUND 6/27/ 06/29/2018 HALL-SETUP,SEC GRD 6/27 40-55-10-46740  UPPER RIVIERA REVENUE 136.50-

REFUND 6/27/ 06/29/2018 HALL-LEASE 6/27 40-55-10-46740  UPPER RIVIERA REVENUE 500.00-

          Total HALL,FRAN: 363.50

HOFF,KYLE

REFUND 7/5/1 07/10/2018 HOFF-SEC DEP 7/5 40-55-10-23530  SECURITY DEPOSITS-UPPER RIV 1,000.00

REFUND 7/5/1 07/10/2018 HOFF-SETUP,SEC GRD 7/5 40-55-10-46740  UPPER RIVIERA REVENUE 364.00-

          Total HOFF,KYLE: 636.00

HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

5297-6/18 06/21/2018 GARBAGE CANS 11-52-00-53500  BLDG MAINT SUPPLIES-PARKS 15.94

5297-6/18 06/21/2018 SHOWERHEAD,SHOWER CURT 40-54-10-53520  BEACH MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 49.49

5297-6/18 06/21/2018 POWER WASHER WAND 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 49.94

          Total HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES: 115.37

HUMPHREY'S CONTRACTING

7/11/18 07/11/2018 CURB REPAIR-SLSD/BAKER ST 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 2,081.95



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     5

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

          Total HUMPHREY'S CONTRACTING: 2,081.95

IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH

REFUND OVE 07/02/2018 REFUND OVERCHARGE 11-24-00-44310  ELECTRICAL PERMITS 300.00

          Total IMMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH: 300.00

ITU ABSORB TECH INC

7034970 06/28/2018 MATS 11-16-10-53600  CITY HALL MAINT SERVICE COSTS 79.16

          Total ITU ABSORB TECH INC: 79.16

JIM FLOWER

JUN-18 07/06/2018 118 MILES-C/E 11-24-00-53300  BLDG INSPECTOR TRAVEL-MILEAGE 64.31

          Total JIM FLOWER: 64.31

JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC

195732 07/06/2018 JUL SVC 11-36-00-52940  SOLID WASTE-RESIDENTIAL 27,776.40

195732 07/06/2018 JUL SVC 11-36-00-52970  SOLID WASTE-RECYCLING 11,376.00

          Total JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC: 39,152.40

KENT AUTOMOTIVE

9305935444 06/09/2018 DRILL BITS 11-32-10-53400  OPERATING SUPPLIES-STREET DEPT 160.74

          Total KENT AUTOMOTIVE: 160.74

LAKE GENEVA REGIONAL NEWS

1260276 06/30/2018 LN-281 EDWARDS BLVD GDP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 48.09

1260278 06/30/2018 LN-281 EDWARDS BLVD PIP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 46.93

1260282 06/30/2018 LN-501 1/2 BROAD ST CUP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 42.34

1260284 06/30/2018 LN-905 BAYVIEW DR ER-1 CUP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 45.79

1260285 06/30/2018 LN-905 BAYVIEW CUP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 41.20

1260286 06/30/2018 LN-962 MARIANE TER CUP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 41.20

1260339 06/30/2018 LN-640 W MAIN ST CUP 11-10-00-53150  PUBLICATION FEES REIMBURSABLE 44.64

1260920 06/30/2018 LN-ANNUAL LIQ LIC RENEWAL 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 151.13

1261404 06/30/2018 LN-5/14/18 COUNCIL MINUTES 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 226.84

1262008 06/30/2018 LN-DPW HELP WANTED 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 134.40

126208 06/30/2018 LN-DPW HELP WANTED 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 134.40

1262205 06/30/2018 LN-DPW MOSQUITO SPRAYING 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 76.00

1262217 06/30/2018 LN-2018 OPEN BOOK NOTICE 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 27.31

1263327 06/30/2018 LN-SHORT TERM RENTAL ORD 11-10-00-53140  OFFICIAL PUBLICATIONS & NOTICE 33.72

          Total LAKE GENEVA REGIONAL NEWS: 1,093.99

LAKE GENEVA UTILITY

205 CAPPELL 05/22/2018 205 CAPPELLA WAY 45-00-00-24520  WATER IMPACT FEES 1,690.00

205 CAPPELL 05/22/2018 205 CAPPELLA WAY 45-00-00-24530  SEWER IMPACT FEES 1,865.00

213 CAPPELL 05/22/2018 213 CAPPELLA WAY 45-00-00-24520  WATER IMPACT FEES 1,690.00

213 CAPPELL 05/22/2018 213 CAPPELLA WAY 45-00-00-24530  SEWER IMPACT FEES 1,865.00

224 SUMMER 06/29/2018 224 SUMMERHAVEN LN 45-00-00-24520  WATER IMPACT FEES 1,690.00

224 SUMMER 06/29/2018 224 SUMMERHAVEN LN 45-00-00-24530  SEWER IMPACT FEES 1,865.00

229 SUMMER 05/17/2018 229 SUMMERHAVEN LN 45-00-00-24520  WATER IMPACT FEES 1,690.00

229 SUMMER 05/17/2018 229 SUMMERHAVEN LN 45-00-00-24530  SEWER IMPACT FEES 1,865.00



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     6

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

          Total LAKE GENEVA UTILITY: 14,220.00

LASER ELECTRIC SUPPLY

1462597-00 06/21/2018 EXIT LIGHTS-1070 CAREY 11-32-10-53500  BLDG MAINT SUPPLIES-STR DEPT 153.34

1462818-00 06/29/2018 LIGHT BULBS,BALLASTS 11-16-10-53600  CITY HALL MAINT SERVICE COSTS 148.88

1462818-00 06/29/2018 DISCOUNT 11-00-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED 2.98-

8113487-00 07/05/2018 CREDIT CASE SHORTAGE 11-16-10-53600  CITY HALL MAINT SERVICE COSTS 29.00-

8113487-00 07/05/2018 DISCOUNT 11-00-00-48190  DISCOUNTS EARNED .58

          Total LASER ELECTRIC SUPPLY: 270.82

MAYER,DAN

REFUND 6/27/ 07/11/2018 WASHER,SCREWS-LAUNCH BU 40-52-11-53520  LAUNCH RAMP MAINT SUPPLIES 21.64

          Total MAYER,DAN: 21.64

MIDSTATE EQUIPMENT

D33912 07/12/2018 WATER PUMP,GASKETS-TRAC 11-32-10-52500  ST DEPT EQUIPMENT REPAIRS 355.09

N21042 06/30/2018 JOHN DEERE-WAM REPAIR 11-52-00-52500  EQUIPMENT REPAIR SERVICES 2,434.32

N21165 06/21/2018 TRIMMER REPAIR 48-00-00-52500  CEM EQUIP MAINT/REPAIRS 192.40

V93569 07/03/2018 MOWER-V BELT 48-00-00-52500  CEM EQUIP MAINT/REPAIRS 73.70

          Total MIDSTATE EQUIPMENT: 3,055.51

OFFICE DEPOT

158134211001 07/02/2018 TONER 11-14-20-53100  CITY ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES 64.17

158134211001 07/02/2018 PAPER,ENV,MOISTENER 11-16-10-53100  CITY HALL OFFICE SUPPLIES 184.70

158135941001 06/30/2018 SPIRAL BINDERS 11-15-10-53100  ACCTG OFFICE SUPPLIES 27.99

          Total OFFICE DEPOT: 276.86

OTTO JACOBS

116097 06/25/2018 GRAVEL-STORM SEWER REPAI 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 983.00

116098 06/25/2018 GRAVEL-STORM SEWER REPAI 43-32-10-17010  2017 STREET IMP PROGRAM 432.00

          Total OTTO JACOBS: 1,415.00

PARTSTREE.COM

6963277 07/03/2018 COVER,FASTENER-CHAIN SAW 11-32-13-54300  TREE & BRUSH OPERATING SUPPLY 19.52

          Total PARTSTREE.COM: 19.52

PATS SERVICES INC

A-162161 07/05/2018 PORT A POTTY SVC-JUN 48-00-00-52260  CEM WATER/SEWER EXP 80.00

          Total PATS SERVICES INC: 80.00

PFI FASHIONS INC

241216 06/29/2018 STAFF SHIRTS 42-34-50-51380  PARKING UNIFORMS 301.11

241490 07/10/2018 UNIFORM PRINTING 42-34-50-51380  PARKING UNIFORMS 33.00

          Total PFI FASHIONS INC: 334.11

POWER TECH, LLC

8788 07/02/2018 COMM ELEC INSP MAY-JUN 11-24-00-52190  CONTRACT BUILDING INSPECTOR 1,320.00



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     7

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

          Total POWER TECH, LLC: 1,320.00

R&R INSURANCE SERVICES INC

1892965 06/14/2018 POLICY RENEW-STORAGE TAN 11-10-10-55120  GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 1,631.52

          Total R&R INSURANCE SERVICES INC: 1,631.52

RHYME BUSINESS PRODUCTS

22914040 06/27/2018 TASKALFA 3011I-JUN 11-24-00-53100  BLDG INSPECTOR OFFICE SUPPLIES 186.62

AR231880 06/28/2018 SHARP-JUN B&W 11-16-10-55310  CH OFFICE EQUIPMENT CONTRACTS 68.54

AR231880 06/28/2018 SHARP-JUN COLOR 11-16-10-55310  CH OFFICE EQUIPMENT CONTRACTS 245.68

          Total RHYME BUSINESS PRODUCTS: 500.84

ROTE OIL COMPANY

1819100017 07/10/2018 337.4 GALS CLEAR DIESEL 11-32-10-53410  VEHICLE-FUEL & OIL 964.63

1819100018 07/10/2018 491.9 GALS DYED DIESEL 11-32-10-53410  VEHICLE-FUEL & OIL 1,253.85

          Total ROTE OIL COMPANY: 2,218.48

SYSTEMS DESIGN

1254-01 06/26/2018 SPRINKLER ACTIVATION 11-52-00-53520  GROUNDS MAINT SUPPLIES 627.55

15901 06/26/2018 SPRINKLER ACTIVATION 11-52-00-53520  GROUNDS MAINT SUPPLIES 171.34

16072 06/26/2018 SPRINKLER ACTIVATION 11-52-00-53520  GROUNDS MAINT SUPPLIES 249.50

          Total SYSTEMS DESIGN: 1,048.39

T2 SYSTEMS CANADA

INVSTD00000 06/23/2018 IRIS FEES-JULY 42-34-50-54500  SUPPORT CONTRACTS 2,544.00

INVSTD00000 06/23/2018 IRIS FEES-JULY 40-54-10-53400  LUKE OPERATING EXPENSES 119.25

          Total T2 SYSTEMS CANADA: 2,663.25

THE SUPPLY CORPORATION

68573-IN 07/06/2018 HAND SOAP 11-52-00-53500  BLDG MAINT SUPPLIES-PARKS 219.50

          Total THE SUPPLY CORPORATION: 219.50

TIM'S TAP LINE CLEANING INC

16904 07/12/2018 SANITIZE TAP LINE 40-55-20-53600  RIV MAINTENANCE SERVICE COSTS 60.00

          Total TIM'S TAP LINE CLEANING INC: 60.00

TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN

100558666 05/21/2018 FENCE LINE SPRAYER-VETS P 11-52-01-59520  GROUNDS MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 78.65

          Total TRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN: 78.65

TRIEBOLD IMPLEMENT INC

IW67271 07/06/2018 RHINO-BEARING 11-52-00-52500  EQUIPMENT REPAIR SERVICES 150.75

          Total TRIEBOLD IMPLEMENT INC: 150.75

UNITED LABORATORIES

INV227130 06/25/2018 RESTROOM CLEANSERS 11-52-00-53500  BLDG MAINT SUPPLIES-PARKS 597.00



CITY OF LAKE GENEVA Payment Approval Report - Detail Board Report Page:     8

Report dates: 7/1/2018-7/13/2018 Jul 13, 2018  12:49PM

Invoice Number Invoice Date Description GL Account and Title Net 

Invoice Amount

          Total UNITED LABORATORIES: 597.00

US CELLULAR

31 07/01/2018 HARBORMASTER 40-55-10-52210  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 11.83

31 07/01/2018 MAYOR 11-16-10-52210  CITY HALL TELEPHONE EXPENSE 83.10

31 07/01/2018 BUILDING INSPECTOR 11-24-00-52620  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 11.83

31 07/01/2018 ADMINISTRATOR 11-16-10-52210  CITY HALL TELEPHONE EXPENSE 128.23

31 07/01/2018 BEACH CELL 40-54-10-52210  BEACH TELEPHONE 11.83

31 07/01/2018 PARKING CELL #1 42-34-50-52210  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 43.00

31 07/01/2018 PARKING CELL #2 42-34-50-52210  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 43.00

31 07/01/2018 CITY MAINTENANCE 11-16-10-52210  CITY HALL TELEPHONE EXPENSE 10.75

31 07/01/2018 PARKING SUPERVISOR 42-34-50-52210  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 10.75

31 07/01/2018 CITY CLERK 11-16-10-52210  CITY HALL TELEPHONE EXPENSE 80.14

31 07/01/2018 CEMETERY 48-00-00-52210  CEM TELEPHONE EXP 11.83

31 07/01/2018 STREET DIRECTOR (T.EARLE) 11-32-10-52210  ST DEPT TELEPHONE EXPENSE 11.83

31 07/01/2018 STREET FOREMAN (WASWO) 11-32-10-52210  ST DEPT TELEPHONE EXPENSE 11.83

31 07/01/2018 STREET FOREMAN (BEHRENS) 11-32-10-52210  ST DEPT TELEPHONE EXPENSE 56.81

31 07/01/2018 PARKING MANAGER 42-34-50-52210  TELEPHONE EXPENSE 10.75

          Total US CELLULAR: 537.51

VILLAGE OF GENOA CITY

1572 07/06/2018 BEACH TESTING-MAY 40-54-10-53620  BEACH MAINTENANCE SERVICE COS 120.00

1573 07/09/2018 BEACH TESTING-JUN 40-54-10-53620  BEACH MAINTENANCE SERVICE COS 240.00

          Total VILLAGE OF GENOA CITY: 360.00

WE ENERGIES

2 07/01/2018 CITY HALL 11-16-10-52240  CITY HALL GAS HEAT 202.94

2 07/01/2018 FIRE STATION 11-22-00-52240  FIREHOUSE GAS HEAT .00

2 07/01/2018 UPPER RIVIERA 40-55-10-52240  UPPER RIVIERA GAS HEAT 43.20

2 07/01/2018 HOST DRIVE WATER TOWER 11-22-00-52240  FIREHOUSE GAS HEAT 18.50

2 07/01/2018 MUSEUM 11-51-10-52240  MUSEUM-GAS HEAT 11.08-

2 07/01/2018 1055 CAREY ST 11-32-10-52240  ST DEPT BLDG GAS HEAT 1.09

2 07/01/2018 1065 CAREY ST 11-32-10-52240  ST DEPT BLDG GAS HEAT 11.08-

2 07/01/2018 1070 CAREY ST 11-32-10-52240  ST DEPT BLDG GAS HEAT 11.08-

2 07/01/2018 VETS PARK 11-52-01-52240  VETS PARK GAS HEAT 1.75

2 07/01/2018 CEMETERY 48-00-00-52240  CEM GAS HEAT EXP 8.85

2 07/01/2018 LIBRARY 99-00-00-52220  LIBRARY UTILITIES 83.00

2 07/01/2018 LIBRARY 99-00-00-52220  LIBRARY UTILITIES 226.00

          Total WE ENERGIES: 552.09

YMCA

JULY/AUG 201 07/01/2018 JUL/AUG PAYMENT 11-70-00-57600  YMCA-YOUTH ATHLETIC PROGRAM 9,000.00

          Total YMCA: 9,000.00

          Grand Totals:  137,426.99


	0-July 23, 2018 Council Agenda
	/
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, July 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	07 23 2018 Council Agenda & Packet
	08-July 9, 2018 Council Minutes
	Regular City Council Meeting Minutes
	Monday, July 9, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	09a- Original & Renewed Operator Licenses
	09b-08 10 2018 LG Library Book Sale
	09c-Lake Front Shuttle Taxi Application
	0-July 23, 2018 Council Agenda
	/
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Monday, July 23, 2018 – 6:00 PM
	Council Chambers, City Hall

	11a-Resolution 18-R55 Resolution Authorizing Receipt of the 2017 Audit
	11ba-MUA proposals, 1055 Carey 1
	11bb-MUA proposals 1055 Carey 2
	11ca-John Deere 850 utility  #52
	11cb-JD 850 replacement, Vets Park
	11d-Elevation info for Mark Ellena
	11e-Avian Committee Request
	11ga1-Parking Pilot App
	11ga-Task 15_Cemetery Road Engineering and CM
	11gb-Cemetery Road Special Assessment Report-Draft 5-10-2018
	11gc-Assessment Eligibility Map 6.12.2018
	11gd-Assessment Cost Estimate 5-10-18
	Cemetery (B)

	11ge-Current Services Map 6.12.2018
	11gf-Municipality Map 6.12.2018
	11gg-PSC X-2 Water Main Ext Rule
	11gh-Cemetery Rd Project Progression for PWC 6.14.2018
	Flow 

	12a - 401 Host Dr CSM
	401 Host Dr CSM
	401 Host Drive CSM

	12b-Resolution 18-R50 CUP FroZone - Indoor Commercial Entertainment
	12b 270 Broad St CUP
	270 Broad Street Frozone CUP
	270 Broad St Downtown Desgin & CUP
	270 Broad St Downtown Desgin & CUP.pdf
	doc00844620180711151902
	doc00844720180711151924.pdf

	doc00844720180711151924


	12ca-Resolution 18-R51 CUP 905 Bayview Larson Trust ER-1 - SR-4
	10. 905 Bayview Dr CUP SR-4
	905 Bayview Dr CUP ER-1 SR-4
	10. 905 Bayview Dr CUP SR-4
	905 Bayview Dr CUP ER-1 SR-4
	905 Bayview Drive - CUP SR-4
	905 Bayview Drive-Application Packet
	905 Bayview Drive-Plans and Survey
	18-5012 TS
	Sheets and Views
	C000 TITLE SHEET & VICINITY MAP


	18-5012 Foundation Exhibit
	Sheets and Views
	Foundation Exhibit


	18-5012 Existing Conditions
	18-5012 EC and Grading
	Sheets and Views
	Grade & EC


	18-5012 Landscaping
	Sheets and Views
	Landscape



	905 Bayview Drive-Elevations and Materials



	11. 905 Bayview Dr CUP Pier
	905 Bayview Dr Boat Slip CUP
	11. 905 Bayview Dr CUP Pier
	905 Bayview Dr Boat Slip CUP
	905 Bayview Drive CUP Pier
	doc00698020180614125212
	doc00698120180614125256
	doc00698220180614125317



	12ea-Resolution 18-R53 CUP 75 Hillside Dr ER-1 - SR-4
	12. 75 Hillside Dr CUP
	75 Hillside Dr CUP ER-1 SR-4
	75 Hillside Dr  CUP
	75 Hillside conditional use application
	75 Hiiside Dr. Lake Gevena - conditional application 2
	IMG_0730 3
	IMG_0731 4
	IMG_0732 5
	WoodField Erickson Site 6-11-18 6
	Scan_0151-01 7
	Grading Plan 8
	Scan_0150 8


	12fa-Resolution 18-R54 CUP 918 W. Main Library sign
	13. 918 W Main St CUP
	918 W. Main St
	918 W Main St CUP

	Resolution 18-R42 Dark Store Loophole
	12ca-Regular Bills
	12cb-Regular BillsOv5K
	12cc-Detail Board Report 7 17 18
	12ba-Prepaids
	12bb-Prepaids 6 27 18 to 7 3 18
	12bc-Prepaids07 13 18




